
BOARD MEETING AGENDA
Monday, July 25, 2016

Regular Meeting 7:00 P.M.

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Roll Call.

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of July 11, 2016.

Motion 5. Approve Minutes of the Special Meeting of July 12, 2016.

Information 6. Monthly Operations Report for June 2016 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
and Legal/Community Affairs Committees).

7. Written Communications.

8. Oral Communications.
The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting). This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda. If the subject relates to an agenda item, the
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30
minutes per subject. Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion.

Motion 9. Consider Proposed Changes to the District Mission Statement (to be reviewed by the
Legal/Community Affairs Committee).

Motion 10. Consider a Resolution to Accept the Assignment of Rights to Install Sewers for Tracts
8106 and 8126 – Mission Creek, Located Along San Francisco Public Utilities
Commission (SFPUC) Property at Tangelo Court in the City of Fremont (to be reviewed
by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Motion 11. Consider a Resolution to Accept the Construction of the Aeration Basins 5 7 Diffuser
Membranes Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc. and Authorize
Recordation of a Notice of Completion (to be reviewed by the Engineering and
Information Technology Committee).

1 of 101



Information 12. Check Register.

Information 13. Cal Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
Committee).

Information 14. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update (to be reviewed by the Budget &
Finance Committee).

Information 15. Board of Directors Internal Committee Assignments for Fiscal Year 2017.

Information 16. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):
a. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Wednesday, July 20, 2016, at 10:30 a.m.
b. Budget & Finance Committee – Thursday, July 21, 2016, at 1:00 p.m.
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, July 22, 2016, at 9:15 a.m.
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.
e. Legislative Committee – will not meet.
f. Ad Hoc Subcommittee for Communications Strategy.

Information 17. General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

18. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.

19. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Board Workshop to be held in the
Boardroom on Monday, August 1, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.

20. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the
Boardroom on Monday, August 8, 2016, at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary
District at least one working day prior to the meeting).
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered. If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda,
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared. Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item.

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible. Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510)
477 7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

2 of 101



NOTICE OF All meetings will be held in
COMMITTEE MEETING the General Manager’s Office

5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587

BOARD MEETING OF JULY 25, 2016

Committee Membership:
Budget and Finance Directors Manny Fernandez and Pat Kite (Alt. – Jennifer Toy)
Engineering and Information Technology Directors Tom Handley and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Pat Kite)
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Tom Handley)
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt–Pat Kite)
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Anjali Lathi)
Audit Committee Directors Anjali Lathi and Jennifer Toy (Alt. Manny Fernandez)

Engineering and Information Technology Committee, Wednesday, July 20, 2016, at 10:30 a.m.

10. Consider a Resolution to Accept the Assignment of Rights to Install Sewers for Tracts 8106 and
8126 – Mission Creek, Located Along San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) Property
at Tangelo Court in the City of Fremont.

11. Consider a Resolution to Accept the Construction of the Aeration Basins 5 7 Diffuser Membranes
Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc. and Authorize Recordation of a Notice
of Completion.

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, July 21, 2016, at 1:00 p.m.

6. Monthly Operations Report for June 2016 – Financial Reports.

13. Cal Card Quarterly Activity Report.

14. Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update.

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Friday, July 22, 2016, at 9:15 a.m.

6. Monthly Operations Report for June 2016 – Odor Report and Work Group Reports.

9. Consider Proposed Changes to the District Mission Statement.

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors.
(Gov. Code Section 54953 (b))

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.

3 of 101



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

July 11, 2016

CALL TO ORDER

President Toy called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President  
  Tom Handley, Vice President
  Pat Kite, Secretary 
  Anjali Lathi, Director
  Manny Fernandez, Director
   
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
  Pamela Arends-King, Business Services Manager/CFO
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary 
      
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2016

It was moved by Secretary Kite, seconded by Vice President Handley, to approve the 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 27, 2016.  Motion carried unanimously.  

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF JUNE 27, 2016

It was moved by Vice President Handley, seconded by Director Lathi, to approve the 
Minutes of the Meeting of June 27, 2016.  Motion carried unanimously. 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications. 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

4 of 101



SOUTH BAY SALT POND RESTORATION:  PROJECT UPDATE

John Bourgeois, South Bay Salt Pond Restoration Project Executive Project Manager,
provided a project update and responded to questions from Boardmembers.

ADOPT A RESOLUTION DECLARING THE RESULTS OF THE PRESIDENTIAL 
PRIMARY ELECTION HELD JUNE 7, 2016

District Counsel Murphy stated the Board adopted Resolution No. 2771, Calling the June 
7, 2016 Election for Three Directors, and Resolution No. 2772, Consolidating the Union 
Sanitary District Election with the Presidential Primary Election on June 7, 2016, at the 
Board meeting held January 11, 2016. Director Pat Kite, representing Ward 2, and 
Director Anjali Lathi, representing Ward 3, were the only candidates for their respective 
wards and were reappointed by the County to serve terms expiring June 2020.  Director 
Manny Fernandez received the highest number of votes to represent Ward 1, and was 
reelected to serve a term expiring June 2020.  The election results, canvassed and 
certified by the Registrar of Voters, were included in the Board meeting packet.  Staff 
recommended the Board adopt a resolution declaring the results of the election held June 
7, 2016.

It was moved by Vice President Handley, seconded by Secretary Kite, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2783 Declaring the Results of the Election Held June 7, 2016.  Motion 
carried unanimously.

SWEARING IN OF REELECTED BOARDMEMBER MANNY FERNANDEZ AND 
REAPPOINTED BOARDMEMBERS PAT KITE AND ANJALI LATHI

General Manager Eldredge stated former District Counsel O’Hara would administer the 
oaths of office.

District Counsel O’Hara administered the oath of office to Reelected Boardmember 
Manny Fernandez and Reappointed Boardmembers Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi. 

President Toy recessed the meeting at 7:28 p.m. for a reception honoring reelected and 
reappointed Boardmembers.

President Toy reconvened the meeting at 7:49 p.m.

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR FY 2017

General Manager Eldredge stated Policy 3070 was adopted by the Board in March of 
2016.  The policy states the Board shall annually elect by majority vote the President, 
Vice-President, and Secretary for one year terms to coincide with the fiscal year.

5 of 101



It was moved by President Toy, seconded by Secretary Kite, that Tom Handley would 
serve as President, Pat Kite would serve as Vice President, and Anjali Lathi would serve 
as Secretary for Fiscal Year 2017. Motion carried unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Commission Meeting of 
June 16, 2016

Vice President Handley stated President Toy also attended the meeting as she will be the 
District’s representative to the Commission for FY17.

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:
There were no committee meetings.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:
General Manager Eldredge reported the following:

A boundary modification request submitted by Alameda County Water District for 
their northern boundary of the Niles Cone Groundwater Basin has been tentatively 
approved by Department of Water Resources staff, and the City of Hayward has 
submitted letter of protest.
A new Cogen engine will be delivered to the District on July 12, 2016.  
Recruitment opened for the Business Services Coach position, and will close 
August 17, 2016.  
Internal Committee preference forms were distributed to all Boardmembers, and 
should be completed and returned to staff by July 14, 2016.  

OTHER BUSINESS:

There was no other business.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:58 p.m. to the Special Meeting Closed Session to be 
held in the Alvarado Conference Room on Tuesday, July 12, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the next scheduled Regular Board Meeting to be held in 
the Boardroom on Monday, July 25, 2016, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

6 of 101



_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     PAT KITE 
BOARD SECRETARY    SECRETARY  

APPROVED:

__________________________
JENNIFER TOY
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 25th day of July, 2016 

7 of 101



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

July 12, 2016

CALL TO ORDER

President Toy called the special meeting to order at 6:43 p.m.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Jennifer Toy, President 
  Tom Handley, Vice President
  Pat Kite, Secretary
  Anjali Lathi, Director
  Manny Fernandez, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Karen Murphy, District Counsel
  Leah Castella, Special Counsel
     
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications. 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board adjourned to Closed Session for the following matter:

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Government Code Section 54956.9(d):         
One potential case

The Board reconvened to Open Session.  President Toy reported there was no reportable action.

ADJOURNMENT:

The special meeting was adjourned at 7:58 p.m. to the next Regular Board Meeting in the Boardroom on 
Monday, July 25, 2016, at 7:00 p.m.

SUBMITTED:      ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
KRISTINA SILVA     PAT KITE
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
JENNIFER TOY
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 25th day of July, 2016 

8 of 101



 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney

 
DATE: July 18, 2016 
 
TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 6 - Meeting of July 25, 2016 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for June 2016 
 
Background 
 
Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for June 2016.  Staff is available to answer questions 
regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Business Services     Pamela Arends-King BS   
Collection Services     James Schofield  CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
There were seven odor complaints received in the month of June 2016.  The first was received 
from Fremont.  District staff inspected the sewer mains and storm drain inlets in the area and 
found a light sewage smell emanating from a 24” manhole.  Staff covered the holes in the manhole 
and recommended installation of carbon air filters to stop future odors from the manhole.  The 
second complaint was received from Newark.  District staff found no odor after inspecting the 
sewer main and storm drain inlets in the vicinity.  Staff did detect the smell of a dead animal in 
the area.  The findings were relayed to the complaining party, and staff suggested they contact a 
pest removal company.  The five complaints in Union City were received from the same individual 
on Mackinaw Street.  The individual continues to report odors they believe to be coming from the 
treatment plant.  Staff investigated the complaints and found the odors to be from the Bay, salt 
ponds, and a nearby creek.   A detailed account of all seven complaints has been included in the 
Board meeting packet. 

9 of 101



SAFETY:  
In June we had two near misses in the treatment plant.  The first one was an employee 
exposed to high levels of H2S while unloading material for the co-digestion pilot 
project.  The pilot project is now complete so the hazard is no longer on site.   The second 
near miss was an accidental flooding of aeration basin 5 while it was out of service for 
maintenance.  No one was in the basin at the time and not all gates were locked out to 
secure the area.  The SOP has been corrected to include securing all gates. 
We still have one employee on modified duty from his injury in February. 
We had a consultant perform a security audit of the treatment plant facility.  We will 
receive a report providing suggested improvements and options for levels of security. 
We are seeing an increase in wildlife around the facility.  Employees are reporting their 
interactions with Hawks, raccoons and skunks. 
We had the Sink-Mod barbeque.  Everyone enjoyed the event including the short 
speeches. 

 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments:  

Training and Emergency Response Programs Manager – Karoline Terrazas started on 
6/6/16 
Assistant/Associate Engineer – Rod Schurman started on 6/6/16 

 
Other Accomplishments: 

District-wide Harassment Prevention training was completed. 
Leadership school acceptance letters were sent to 6 employees.   
On-going review and preparation of Leadership School modules. 

 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of June, the GM was involved in the following: 
 

Conducted individual meetings with Boardmembers. 
Attended a Lystek site tour at the Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District. 
Attended the Sink-Mod recognition BBQ for staff. 
Participated in the EBDA debriefing meeting between incoming and outgoing Board 
representatives. 
 
 

Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 

  Financial Reports 
  Business Services 
  Technical Services 
  Collection Services 
  Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
  Treatment and Disposal Services 
 

10 of 101



ODOR REPORT 
June 2016 

During the recording period from June 01, 2016 through June 30, 2016, there were seven odor  
related service requests received by the District. 

City:  Fremont 

1. Complaint Details: 
Date: 6/17/2016 Time:   3:15 pm 
Location:  CALAVERAS AV Reported By: David Contreras 
Wind (from): South West Wind Speed:  5 mph 
Temperature:  72 Degrees F Weather: Calm 

Response and Follow-up:
We inspected USD sewer mains and storm drain inlets in the area. We found a light sewage smell  
coming from our 24" manhole. We covered the holes in the manhole and recommend installing  
carbon air filters at our manhole to stop any odors. 

City:  Newark 
2. Complaint Details: 

Date: 6/29/2016 Time:  12:00 pm 
Location:  MARKET AV Reported By: Gauri Desai 
Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:  5 mph 
Temperature:  87 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
We inspected the USD main and storm drain inlets in the area. There were no odors emanating  
from our main or storm drain inlets. We did detect a smell of a dead animal. We relayed our  
findings to the resident and suggested that they call a pest removal company. We told them to  
call us back should any more odors occur. 

City:  Union City 
3. Complaint Details: 

Date: 6/15/2016 Time:   3:28 pm 
Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  10 mph  
Temperature:  70 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
Resident left a voice message and reported smelling odors for several days. Message was not heard  

 until 6/16/2016.  

11 of 101



4. Complaint Details: 
Date: 6/16/2016 Time:   9:45 am 
Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  5 mph  
Temperature:  66 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
Resident left a voicemail for the WGM. Plant & neighborhood odor observations were  

 conducted. Feint odors were detected in the Plant and identified as the bay, cheese DAF residual,  
 and GBT polymer. There were no correlating odors detected in the vicinity of the Mr.Dua’s residence. 
 WGM called resident with the status update. 

5. Complaint Details: 
Date: 6/20/2016 Time:  10:30 am 
Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  10 mph  
Temperature:  72 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
Resident reported an odor that was detected the night before but did not call until 6/21/16.  
Mr. Dua spoke with Ric stating that the odor was bad all day long on Saturday 6/18/2016 that he was  

 not around on Sunday and Monday until Monday around 9 pm. Then at 11 pm on 6/20/2016, the odor  
 became very strong although the odor was no longer present at the time of the call. During additional  
 investigation, Jeff Barton confirmed that he detected strong odors on Monday night coming from the  
 ponds to the west of the Plant. 

6. Complaint Details: 
Date: 6/21/2016 Time:   6:08 pm 
Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  10 mph  
Temperature:  85 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
Resident reported an odor along Seaport Drive. Plant & Neighborhood odor observations were  

 conducted. Feint odors were detected in the Plant and were identified as the salt ponds, manure  
  smell from the field, and smell coming from the secondaries. The Neighborhood observation resulted  
  in detecting feint secondary odors in three areas near Mr.Dua’s residence, including Seaport Dr. The  
  Operator talked to another resident in the neighborhood on Seaport Dr. and that person identified the  
  smell as coming from the salt ponds. WGM will keep the resident updated on status of the odors. 

City:  Union City 
7. Complaint Details: 

Date: 6/23/2016 Time:   5:24 pm 
Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  13 mph  
Temperature:  68 Degrees F Weather: Clear 

Response and Follow-up:
Resident reported a foul odor along Seaport Drive. An Operator and TPO Coach investigated the  
neighborhood. Odors were detected in the neighborhood but were not coming from the Plant. Smell  

  was coming from the creek and/or the salt ponds. Plant odor observation resulted in documenting a  
  feint pond/decay smell and slight odors around the centrifuge building as roll up door was open  
  during repair. The centrifuge odors were not detected in the neighborhood. 

12 of 101



#

#

!

^

# #̂

!

#

^

#

#

^

^
^

#

!

##

!

^^̂

#

#

^

!#̂̂̂

!

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
July 2015 to June 2016

.0 1 2 3 4 50.5
Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: June 2016

Odor Complaints: Jul. 2015 to May. 2016
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (4)

Odor found, USD resolved (9)

No odor found (12)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (2)

^ Odor found, resolution in progress (4)

3. No odor found
4. Odor found, resolution in progress
5. Odor found, resolution in progress
6. Odor found, resolution in progress
7. Odor found, not related to USD

1. Odor found, resolution in progress

2. Odor found, not related to USD

13 of 101



NOTES
(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.
(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 
(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 
     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.
(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has
     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
July 2, 2015 through June 29, 2016
Weeks to Date: 52 out of 52 (100%)

40.6 

21.4 

52.4 49.9 
40.8 

55.0 
44.5 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

36.1 35.1 35.3 35.4 34.6 35.1 35.1 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

14 of 101



Regular         
(1)

Overtime      
(2)

Discretionary 
(3)

Short Term 
Disability

Workers 
Comp 

Sick          
(4)

Average 
Number of 
Employees

At-Work 
Hours Per 
Week Per 
Employee

Annual 
Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 3,674.75           73.00              36.1 404.00            -              -             81.25             40.6 3 34.4 28.8
BS 22 39,657.60         330.86            35.1 5,396.85         -              -             470.39           21.4 22 35.3 30.2

FMC 22 39,464.25         756.17            35.3 4,802.38         260.37       -             1,153.00        52.4 23 34.2 52.4
TD 25 44,725.42         1,177.94         35.4 5,609.08         333.09       -             1,248.41        49.9 25 35.3 24.1
TS 32 57,062.49         398.14            34.6 6,787.62         147.39       -             1,304.31        40.8 30 35.0 28.1
CS 31 53,301.68         3,182.65         35.1 7,624.97         389.58       324.00       1,703.45        55.0 29 36.8 68.4

All Groups 134 237,886.19       5,918.76         35.1 30,624.90      1,130.43    324.00      5,960.81       44.5 132 35.3 40.8

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47
The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY15

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
July 2, 2015 through June 29, 2016
Weeks to Date: 52 out of 52 (100%)

Average Annual Sick 
Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 
Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 
Number of 
Employees

15 of 101



BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2016    Year-to-date as of 6/30/16 100% of year elapsed
Preliminary Audited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/15

  Capacity Fees $4,372,000 $7,233,337 165% $4,820,637
  Sewer Service Charges 48,430,260 47,659,776 98% 48,379,254
  Operating 1,080,000 1,233,675 114% 1,143,435
  Interest 345,000 499,458 145% 309,600
  Misc. (incl. LAVWMA pymnt, solar, Cogen rebates) 493,000 408,913 83% 2,127,594

 Subtotal Revenues $54,720,260 $57,035,159 104% $56,780,521

  SRF Loan Proceeds (Thickener) 5,500,000 3,385,590 62% 4,501,122

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $60,220,260 $60,420,749 100% $61,281,643

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Prog.
       Capacity Projects $4,523,000 $2,611,264 58% $3,755,472
       Renewal & Repl. Projects 10,553,000 7,268,995 69% 12,194,927
  Operating 33,827,303 30,956,494 92% 30,058,848
  Special Projects 1,522,970 614,109 40% 1,065,653
  Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 561,205 561,205 100% 543,540
  Vehicle & Equipment 379,500 341,967 90% 787,159
  Information Systems 1,036,700 853,082 82% 616,117
  Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 272,479 109% 168,089
  Pretreatment Fund 12,000 26,423 220% 109,499
  County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 105,866 100% 105,559
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans (Irv.,Wilw,LHH,Cdr,NPS, Sub1,Boyc,Prim Cl) 3,127,110 3,127,110 100% 3,127,110

Total Expenses $55,898,788 $46,738,994 84% $52,531,974

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses $4,321,472 $13,681,756 $8,749,669

Gross Operating Expenses by Work Group % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Board of Directors $176,481 $126,276 72% $135,699
General Manager/Admin. 953,139 837,619 88% 987,502
Business Services 5,199,612 4,727,499 91% 4,460,485
Collection Services 6,066,202 5,759,244 95% 5,447,126
Technical Services 5,323,323 5,048,324 95% 4,693,517
Treatment & Disposal Services 10,227,304 9,050,189 88% 9,172,622
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,881,242 5,407,343 92% 5,161,897

Total $33,827,303 $30,956,494 92% $30,058,848

Operating Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) $23,313,376 $21,716,716 93% (100%)* $20,901,890
Repairs & Maintenance 2,008,184 1,894,634 94% 1,772,819
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 2,645,660 2,154,337 81% 2,285,558
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,580,083 5,001,393 90% 4,961,560
Fixed Assets 280,000 189,414 68% 137,021

Total $33,827,303 $30,956,494 92% $30,058,848

* Personnel Budget Target

16 of 101



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4,372,000

48,430,260

1,080,000 345,000

5,993,0007,233,337

47,659,776

1,233,675 499,458
3,794,503

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service Charges   Operating   Interest   Misc. (incl. SRF
proceeds, LAVWMA)

USD Revenues 

Budget
Actual

15,076,000

33,839,303

1,522,970
561,205 379,500 1,036,700 250,000 3,233,110

9,880,259

30,982,917

614,109 561,205 341,967 853,082 272,479
3,232,976

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

  CIP   Operating/PRTM   Spec. Proj.   Retiree Med.   Vehic & Equip.   Info. Systems   Plant&P.S.  Debt+CntyFee+Misc

Total USD Expenses

Budget
Actual

176,481 953,139

5,199,612
6,066,202 5,323,323

10,227,304

5,881,242

126,276 837,619

4,727,499
5,759,244

5,048,324

9,050,189

5,407,343

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

Board GM/Admin. BS CS TS T&D FMC

Operating Expenses by Work Group

Budget
Actual

23,313,376

2,008,184 2,645,660

5,580,083

280,000

21,716,716

1,894,634 2,154,337

5,001,393

189,414
$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Operating Supplies & Matls Outside Services Fixed Assets

Operating Expenses by Type

Budget
Actual

17 of 101



 
 
 

 
The recruitment for Associate Engineer I was completed; Rodney Schurman was hired on 6/6/2016. 
The recruitment for Technical Training & Emergency Response Programs Manager was completed; 
Karoline Terrazas was hired on 6/6/2016. 
The Organizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) facilitated and documented Collection 
Services Vactor Replacement Alternatives focus group (multiple meetings). 
The OPPM collected data and generated formal proposal for Collection Services for expanding in-house 
repair capability. 
The OPPM provided Team Orientations to new Training & Emergency Response Programs Manager 
The OPPM represented USD at CWEA, “Staying Current: The Latest on Regulatory Updates” seminar.   
The OPPM co-created video for 2016 CASA Organizational Excellence award for the new Leadership 
School (submitted nomination and USD was selected as an award recipient) 
The auditors were here for the interim audit, at this time the auditors did not have find any issues. 
Prepared the FY17 budget. 
Received and reviewed the Bickmore Actuarial Report on GASB 45 Retiree Benefit Valuation. 
Updated the PCI DSS registration for merchant card activity. 
The Principal Financial Analyst completed MBA. 

 
Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    

 

Business Services Group  
Activities Report 

June 2016 

18 of 101



Maturity 
Range

Face 
Amount/Shares

YTM @ 
Cost Cost Value

Days To 
Maturity

% of 
Portfolio Market Value Book Value

Duration To 
Maturity

0-1 Month 13,523,461.03 0.498 13,550,771.53 3 21.70 13,524,240.35 13,524,410.96 0.01

1-3 Months 1,245,000.00 0.693 1,244,356.25 61 1.99 1,245,221.42 1,244,844.75 0.17

3-6 Months 3,355,000.00 0.800 3,374,304.00 134 5.40 3,359,888.22 3,359,283.50 0.36

6-9 Months 6,374,000.00 0.925 6,484,039.69 231 10.38 6,422,730.16 6,417,634.42 0.63

9-12 Months 3,454,000.00 0.772 3,454,107.43 313 5.53 3,457,573.57 3,453,573.24 0.86

1-2 Years 9,463,000.00 0.949 9,480,039.00 477 15.18 9,495,752.21 9,474,257.25 1.30

2-3 Years 4,000,000.00 1.377 4,007,860.00 961 6.42 4,031,300.00 4,007,065.59 2.58

3-4 Years 6,160,000.00 1.577 6,164,256.57 1299 9.87 6,207,391.20 6,163,664.02 3.46

4-5 Years 14,500,000.00 1.985 14,685,645.28 1697 23.52 14,687,240.00 14,680,306.40 4.47

Total / Average 62,074,461.03 1.159 62,445,379.75 712 100 62,431,337.13 62,325,040.13 1.89

19 of 101



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 6/30/2016

Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 1.17 
5/16/2019-17 3133EF7L5 Moodys-

Aaa 5/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.170 1,001,460.00 1.170 5/16/2017 5/16/2019 1.60

FFCB 1.3 
11/25/2019-16 3133EGBK0 Moodys-

Aaa 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 997,950.00 1.300 1,000,590.00 1.360 11/25/2016 11/25/2019 1.60

FFCB 1.4 
4/13/2020-17 3133EF2L0 Moodys-

Aaa 4/25/2016 1,000,000.00 998,500.00 1.400 1,004,550.00 1.439 4/13/2017 4/13/2020 1.60

FFCB 1.58 
10/13/2020-16 3133EF2A4 Moodys-

Aaa 4/13/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.580 1,000,480.00 1.580 10/13/2016 10/13/2020 1.60

FFCB 1.59 
3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 Moodys-

Aaa 3/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.590 1,004,360.00 1.590 3/23/2017 3/23/2020 1.60

FFCB 1.7 
5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 Moodys-

Aaa 5/3/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.700 1,002,910.00 1.700 5/3/2017 5/3/2021 1.60

FHLB 0.625 
11/23/2016 3130A3J70 Moodys-

Aaa 12/16/2015 1,000,000.00 999,000.00 0.625 1,000,540.00 0.732 11/23/2016 1.60

FHLB 0.8 
5/17/2017 3130A4Q54 Moodys-

Aaa 3/27/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,690.00 0.800 1,002,430.00 0.720 5/17/2017 1.60

FHLB 0.9 
9/28/2017 3130A5KH1 Moodys-

Aaa 7/22/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,140.00 0.900 1,004,090.00 0.847 9/28/2017 1.60

FHLB 1.55 
5/13/2021-19 3130A7WQ4 Moodys-

Aaa 5/13/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.550 1,006,110.00 1.550 5/13/2019 5/13/2021 1.60

FHLB Step 
3/15/2021-16 3130A7EG6 Moodys-

Aaa 3/15/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 1,000,410.00 2.216 9/15/2016 3/15/2021 1.60

FHLB Step 
4/28/2021-16 3130A7PR0 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 1,000,150.00 2.114 10/28/2016 4/28/2021 1.60

FHLB Step 
4/28/2021-16 3130A7QX6 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 1,000,560.00 2.021 10/28/2016 4/28/2021 1.60

FHLMC 0.8 
8/25/2017-16 3134G8L49 Moodys-

Aaa 2/25/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.800 1,000,390.00 0.800 8/25/2016 8/25/2017 1.60

Page 1 of 6

20 of 101



Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

FHLMC 1 
7/25/2017

3134G3ZH6 Moodys-
Aaa

6/24/2015 1,000,000.00 1,004,540.00 1.000 1,004,070.00 0.780 7/25/2017 1.61

FHLMC 1.25 
10/28/2019-17 3134G8XQ7 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 1,002,060.00 1.250 4/28/2017 10/28/2019 1.60

FHLMC 1.27 
3/29/2019 3134G8QB8 Moodys-

Aaa 3/29/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.270 1,002,680.00 1.270 3/29/2019 1.60

FHLMC Step 
3/30/2020-17 3134G8ST7 Moodys-

Aaa 3/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.000 1,003,270.00 1.744 3/30/2017 3/30/2020 1.60

FHLMC Step 
4/28/2021-16 3134G8VZ9 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1.250 2,500,550.00 2.116 10/28/2016 4/28/2021 4.00

FHLMC Step 
4/28/2021-16 3134G8Z28 Moodys-

Aaa 5/10/2016 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 1.125 1,000,590.00 2.044 10/28/2016 4/28/2021 1.60

FHLMC Step 
7/28/2020-16 3134G8X20 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.300 1,000,550.00 1.709 10/28/2016 7/28/2020 1.60

FNMA 0.625 
8/26/2016 3135G0YE7 Moodys-

Aaa 12/16/2015 1,000,000.00 999,540.00 0.625 1,000,230.00 0.691 8/26/2016 1.60

FNMA 1.25 
1/30/2017 3135G0GY3 Moodys-

Aaa 12/16/2015 1,000,000.00 1,004,790.00 1.250 1,004,520.00 0.820 1/30/2017 1.61

FNMA 1.5 
6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 Moodys-

Aaa 6/16/2016 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.500 1,000,500.00 1.604 12/16/2016 6/16/2021 1.59

FNMA Step 
5/12/2021-17 3136G3MD4 Moodys-

Aaa 5/12/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.900 1,001,630.00 1.851 5/12/2017 5/12/2021 1.60

Sub Total / 
Average 26,500,000.00 26,501,650.00 1.170 26,549,680.00 1.467 42.44

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,824.85 9,824.85 0.510 9,824.85 0.510 N/A N/A 0.02

Sub Total / 
Average 9,824.85 9,824.85 0.510 9,824.85 0.510 0.02

Certificates of Deposit

1st Source Bank 
0.6 9/15/2016 33646CGK4 None 12/18/2015 245,000.00 244,816.25 0.600 244,991.42 0.701 9/15/2016 0.39

Ally Bank 1 
10/24/2016 02006LKM4 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,295.44 1.000 10/24/2016 0.38

Page 2 of 6

21 of 101



Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

American 
Express Bank 
1.1 10/24/2016

02587CBZ2 None 10/23/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.100 240,302.40 1.100 10/24/2016 0.38

American 
Express 
Centurian 1.05 
6/5/2017

02587DYJ1 None 6/5/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.050 240,396.24 1.050 6/5/2017 0.38

Bank Hapoalim 
0.85 2/17/2017 06251AL65 None 2/18/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 248,329.59 0.850 2/17/2017 0.40

Bank of Baroda 
Ny 0.65 
10/27/2016

06062QCS1 None 10/27/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.650 245,089.18 0.650 10/27/2016 0.39

Bank of India NY 
0.65 
10/26/2016

06279HBX0 None 10/30/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.650 245,065.66 0.650 10/26/2016 0.39

BankUnited NA 
0.9 5/24/2017 066519BE8 None 11/24/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.900 240,446.64 0.900 5/24/2017 0.38

Bar Harbor Bank 
0.7 1/30/2017 066851TT3 None 6/30/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.700 240,283.92 0.700 1/30/2017 0.38

Capital One 
Bank 1 
10/24/2016

140420QG8 None 10/22/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 1.000 240,295.44 1.000 10/24/2016 0.38

Capital One 
National Asso 
Bank 1.25 
8/28/2017

14042E6B1 None 8/26/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.250 246,118.67 1.250 8/28/2017 0.39

Community 
Bank of the 
Chesapeake 
0.75 8/8/2017

20350ABN0 None 6/8/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.750 246,849.91 0.750 8/8/2017 0.40

Compass Bank 
0.95 6/5/2017 20451PLE4 None 6/5/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 240,396.72 0.950 6/5/2017 0.38

Discover Bank 
0.75 1/3/2017 254672QZ4 None 7/1/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,234.00 0.750 1/3/2017 0.38

First Bank of 
Richmond 0.7 
8/2/2017

319267FK1 None 6/2/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.700 246,730.68 0.700 8/2/2017 0.40

33583CSV2 None 10/30/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.100 246,092.94 1.100 10/30/2017 0.39

Page 3 of 6

22 of 101



Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

First Niagara 
Bank 1.1 
10/30/2017

Franklin Synergy 
Bank 0.85 
12/11/2017

35471TCH3 None 6/10/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 247,409.50 0.850 12/11/2017 0.40

Goldman Sachs 
Bank 1 
10/16/2017

38148JQX2 None 4/27/2015 240,000.00 239,520.00 1.000 241,042.08 1.069 10/16/2017 0.38

Great Midwest 
Bank 0.75 
7/27/2016

39083PCK6 None 10/27/2014 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,041.52 0.750 7/27/2016 0.38

Marlin Business 
Bank 0.85 
8/24/2017

57116ALG1 None 2/24/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 248,713.50 0.850 8/24/2017 0.40

Medallion Bank 
1.15 
10/30/2017

58403B2L9 None 10/28/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 1.150 246,089.76 1.150 10/30/2017 0.39

Merrick Bank 0.9 
5/19/2017 59013JLK3 None 11/19/2015 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.900 240,435.36 0.900 5/19/2017 0.38

Pacific Premier 
Bank 0.9 
12/5/2017

69478QDG2 None 6/3/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.900 247,595.23 0.900 12/5/2017 0.40

Peoples State 
Bank of Newton 
0.7 6/15/2017

712490AC5 None 6/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 0.700 247,914.09 0.700 6/15/2017 0.40

Safra National 
Bank 0.7 
11/29/2016

78658QSF1 None 11/30/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.700 245,105.10 0.700 11/29/2016 0.39

Santander Bank 
0.8 2/17/2017 80280JLS8 None 2/17/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.800 248,330.09 0.800 2/17/2017 0.40

TCF National 
Bank 0.85 
8/17/2017

872278SH0 None 2/17/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.850 248,689.94 0.850 8/17/2017 0.40

Wex Bank 0.85 
5/19/2017 92937CDE5 None 11/20/2015 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.850 245,464.52 0.850 5/19/2017 0.39

Sub Total / 
Average 6,833,000.00 6,832,336.25 0.867 6,838,749.54 0.873 10.94

Page 4 of 6

23 of 101



Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

Corporate Issues

American 
Express Credit 
2.375 
3/24/2017

0258M0DD8 Moodys-
A2 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 1,012,171.77 2.375 1,009,770.00 0.900 3/24/2017 1.62

Caterpillar 
Financial 1 
3/3/2017

14912L5Z0 Moodys-
A2 12/23/2014 1,313,000.00 1,307,603.57 1.000 1,314,733.16 1.190 3/3/2017 2.09

Chevron Corp 
2.193 
11/15/2019

166764AN0 Moodys-
Aa2 2/26/2016 1,160,000.00 1,167,806.57 2.193 1,192,561.20 2.004 11/15/2019 1.87

General Electric 
Capital Corp 5.4 
2/15/2017

36962G2G8 Moodys-
A1 3/2/2015 1,085,000.00 1,179,514.35 5.400 1,114,989.40 0.890 2/15/2017 1.89

HSBC 4.875 
8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 Moodys-

A1 5/17/2016 2,000,000.00 2,191,145.28 4.875 2,172,800.00 2.500 8/24/2020 3.51

IBM Corp 1.8 
5/17/2019 459200JE2 Moodys-

Aa3 3/18/2016 1,000,000.00 1,005,370.00 1.800 1,017,550.00 1.624 5/17/2019 1.61

JP Morgan Chase 
& Co 2 
8/15/2017

48126EAA5 Moodys-
A3 2/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,008,859.00 2.000 1,009,320.00 1.400 8/15/2017 1.62

Royal Bank of 
Canada 1.2 
1/23/2017

78010UNX1 Moodys-
Aa3 10/2/2015 1,000,000.00 1,003,960.00 1.200 1,001,540.00 0.895 1/23/2017 1.61

Royal Bank of 
Canada 2.3 
7/20/2016

78008TLB8 Moodys-
Aa3 12/23/2014 1,190,000.00 1,217,310.50 2.300 1,190,737.80 0.830 7/20/2016 1.95

Toyota Motor 
Credit 1.55 
7/13/2018

89236TCP8 Moodys-
Aa3 3/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,002,490.00 1.550 1,009,610.00 1.440 7/13/2018 1.61

Toyota Motor 
Credit Corp 1.2 
4/6/2018

89236TCX1 Moodys-
Aa3 5/24/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,360.00 1.200 1,003,920.00 1.180 4/6/2018 1.60

US Bankcorp 2.2 
11/15/2016 91159HHB9 Moodys-

A1 3/31/2015 900,000.00 920,304.00 2.200 903,195.00 0.797 11/15/2016 1.47

Sub Total / 
Average 13,648,000.00 14,016,895.04 2.564 13,940,726.56 1.402 22.45

Page 5 of 6

24 of 101



Description CUSIP/Ticker

Credit 
Rating 

1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 
Cost

Next Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of 
Portfolio

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 12,083,636.18 12,083,636.18 0.460 12,083,636.18 0.460 N/A N/A 19.35

Sub Total / 
Average 12,083,636.18 12,083,636.18 0.460 12,083,636.18 0.460 19.35

Treasury

T-Bond 0.5 
3/31/2017 912828J92 Moodys-

Aaa 3/9/2016 1,000,000.00 998,417.43 0.500 1,000,090.00 0.650 3/31/2017 1.60

T-Note 0.875 
1/15/2018 912828H37 Moodys-

Aaa 6/1/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,560.00 0.875 1,004,490.00 0.815 1/15/2018 1.60

T-Note 0.875 
11/15/2017 912828G20 Moodys-

Aaa 6/24/2015 1,000,000.00 1,001,060.00 0.875 1,004,140.00 0.830 11/15/2017 1.60

Sub Total / 
Average 3,000,000.00 3,001,037.43 0.750 3,008,720.00 0.765 4.81

Total / 
Average 62,074,461.03 62,445,379.75 1.292 62,431,337.13 1.159 100

Page 6 of 6

25 of 101



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
From 6/1/2016 To 6/30/2016

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal
 Realized 
Gain/Loss 

 Interest Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost
Settlement 

Date
 Total 

Community Bank of the Chesapeake 0.75 8/8/2017 20350ABN0 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.75 0.75 6/8/2016 248,000.00          
First Bank of Richmond 0.7 8/2/2017 319267FK1 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.7 0.7 6/2/2016 248,000.00          
FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.5 1.604 6/16/2016 995,000.00          
Franklin Synergy Bank 0.85 12/11/2017 35471TCH3 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.85 0.85 6/10/2016 248,000.00          
Pacific Premier Bank 0.9 12/5/2017 69478QDG2 248,000.00 248,000.00 0.9 0.9 6/3/2016 248,000.00          
Peoples State Bank of Newton 0.7 6/15/2017 712490AC5 249,000.00 249,000.00 0.7 0.7 6/15/2016 249,000.00          

2,241,000.00 2,236,000.00 2,236,000.00      

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 4.12 4.12 6/30/2016 4.12                      
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00 6/17/2016 5,000,000.00      
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 6/24/2016 2,000,000.00      

7,000,004.12 7,000,004.12 7,000,004.12      

American Express Centurian 1.05 6/5/2017 02587DYJ1 1,263.45            1.05 6/5/2016 1,263.45              
CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 4.12                   6/30/2016 4.12                      
Compass Bank 0.95 6/5/2017 20451PLE4 1,143.12            0.95 6/5/2016 1,143.12              
Great Midwest Bank 0.75 7/27/2016 39083PCK6 152.88               0.75 6/27/2016 152.88                 
Merrick Bank 0.9 5/19/2017 59013JLK3 183.45               0.9 6/19/2016 183.45                 
T-Note 0.5 6/15/2016 912828VG2 2,500.00            0.5 6/15/2016 2,500.00              

5,247.02           5,247.02              

T-Note 0.5 6/15/2016 912828VG2 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 0.5 6/15/2016 1,000,000.00      
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00      

FFCB 0.9 9/21/2017 3133EFN78 1,000,000.00 1,000,500.00 500.00                   2,125.00            0.9 6/16/2016 1,002,625.00      
FFCB 0.93 11/17/2017 3133EFPH4 1,000,000.00 1,000,500.00 713.29                   749.17               0.93 6/16/2016 1,001,249.17      
FFCB 1.68 4/5/2021-17 3133EFX36 1,000,000.00 998,800.00 (518.65)                  3,313.33            1.68 6/16/2016 1,002,113.33      
FHLB 1 3/29/2018-17 3130A7MB8 1,000,000.00 1,001,250.00 1,250.00                2,333.33            1 6/23/2016 1,003,583.33      
FHLB 1.2 12/20/2018 313383DY4 1,000,000.00 1,005,500.00 815.63                   5,866.67            1.2 6/16/2016 1,011,366.67      
FHLB 1.35 11/26/2019-17 3130A7WJ0 1,000,000.00 1,000,300.00 300.00                   1,012.50            1.35 6/23/2016 1,001,312.50      
FHLB 2 4/29/2021-16 3130A7J55 2,000,000.00 2,000,400.00 400.00                   5,222.22            2 6/16/2016 2,005,622.22      

8,000,000.00 8,007,250.00 3,460.27                20,622.22         8,027,872.22      

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 6/7/2016 1,000,000.00      
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 6/10/2016 1,000,000.00      
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 6/15/2016 2,000,000.00      
LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 6/30/2016 3,000,000.00      

7,000,000.00 7,000,000.00 7,000,000.00      

Withdraw

Buy

Deposit

Interest

Matured

Sell

26 of 101



MMONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2016 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 

Capital Improvement Program 
 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project – Concrete placements for scum pit walls and splitter box support 
columns have been completed.  Installation of formwork and reinforcement for at-grade slabs and splitter box base 
slab has begun. 
 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project – Contractor removed electrical equipment and 
conduits from inside the Fremont Lift Station building. Contractor also removed the two existing lift pumps and 
began the surface preparation of the wet wells for new coatings. 
 
MCC and PLC Replacement Project, Phase 3 – Contractor completed conduits and conductors installation at the 
Main Electrical Building. Contractor relocated the existing PLC-8A to a temporary support in the West Blower Room 
to make room for the installation of a new PLC-8. 
 
Plant Facilities Improvements Project - Testing and training of the two groundwater pumps and control panels at 
Primary Clarifier 1-4 have been completed.  Contractor completed coating repair at the Covered Storage and Solar 
Carport and replacement of Heat Exchanger No. 3 and No. 6. 
 
Aeration Blower Project – Staff training and operational testing for the new high speed aeration blower has been 
completed.    
 
Aeration Basins 5-7 Diffuser Membranes Replacement Project – Replacement of all diffuser membranes in Aeration 
Basin #7 have been completed.   
 
Alvarado-Niles Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project – The eastern main bypass set up is complete and 
operational.  CIPP lining shots #1 - #4, from the bridge to Decoto Road, have been installed. 
 
Pine St. Easement Improvements Project – The project was awarded to Valentine Corporation at the June 13th Board 
meeting.  Bonds and insurance have been received.  The Notice to Proceed has been issued for July 5th. 
 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project, Phase 3 – Sewer mains on Noel Avenue and Wilma Avenue 
have been installed.  Lateral installations for Noel Avenue began on June 30th. 
 

 
  

27 of 101



CCustomer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 
Month Fremont Newark Union City Total

J une-16 11 3 3 17
May-16 16 4 2 22
April-16 10 0 2 12

March-16 9 0 3 12
F ebruary-16 9 3 2 14
J anuary-16 13 0 1 14

June-15 18 11 2 5

6-Month T otal 91

0

5

10

15

20

25

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

Sewer Permits Issued 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
J une-16 24 0 3 0 2
May-16 26 4 69 2 4
April-16 19 1 19 1 4

New  L aterals  - New  res idential lateral c onnec tions
Other - Non-res idential c ons truc tion (ex c ept res taurants )

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

April-16 May-16 June-16

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 
 

28 of 101



CCommunication & Graphics
Continued updates to Union City staff regarding Alvarado Niles Road project activities 
Continued management of USD Spring 2016 Newsletter project – researched “misses” and multiple 
deliveries with printer/mailing house 
Responses to customer questions regarding Spring 2016 newsletter: 

o Researched and wrote response to customer questions regarding recycled water 
o Responded to customer questions regarding newsletter articles 

Developed and sent letters to State Assembly and Senate members regarding proposed legislation  
Attended Assemblyman Bill Quirk’s Small Business Recognition breakfast as USD representative to the 
Union City Chamber of Commerce 
Planned with CASA communications workgroup for regional seminars regarding communication – will 
co-present at seminar media relations sessions in October 2016
Partnered with website update project manager to facilitate new website content management system 
training sessions for USD staff members
Updated information on several pages of current website (List of USD’s Enterprise software, Mission, 
Facts, and History page, What’s New page, Awards and Recognition, Financial Information, Capacity Fees 
page, etc.) 
Worked with graphic designer to update several budget and rate graphics for use on current and new 
website 

 
Environmental Compliance 

 
Pollution Prevention Program 
 
USD’s Environmental Compliance team conducts pollution prevention inspections to restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  We conduct over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections every year to 
ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance requirements, 
and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
For the past month, the EC team conducted 76 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 67 FOG (restaurant) inspections. 
During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 21 Stormwater and 25 FOG enforcement actions.  Twelve (12) 
of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500.  Two (2) of the 
administrative fines were for illicit discharges, and a total of 10 were for repeated violations.   
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

June 
20166 

No. of UR 
IInspections VW  WL  NOV  AF  LA  

Total 
EEnforcements  

No. of Illicit 
DDischarge/s 2 

76  4  1  4  12  0  21   % enforcement  28% 
 
FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

June 
20166 

No. of FOG 
IInspections VW  WL  NOV  AF  NOD  

Total 
EEnforcements  % enforcement  37% 

67  12  11  2  0  0  25     
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance 

29 of 101



DDental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
 

# of Dental Inspections  # of School Outreach Events including  
Sewer Science  

# of Plant Tours  

4 4 0 
 
Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has a number of pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors 
are working with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits  Groundwater/Temporary  
Pacific States – Romic Site Groundwater 

 
Permits Issued  

Company Name  Date Permit Issued  
None  

 
Industrial Closures  

Company Name  Date of Closure  
None  

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name  Date Report Completed and Submitted  
None  

 
Enforcement Action 

IU Name & 
NNature of 
Business 

Comments  City  
 

Parameters 
VViolated 

Discharge 
cconcentration 
((mg/L) 

USD/Fed 
LLimit 
Violated 
(mg/L)  

Enforcement  
(1) 

Peacock Indian 
Cuisine 
(Restaurant) 

Illicit 
connection 
to sanitary 
sewer 

F N.A. N.A. N.A. WL 

 (1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 
 
 

Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 
 

Activity  Date of Event  Attendees  
BAPPG meeting 6/1 Doug 
Alameda County Wide Clean 

Water Program  Annual -  
Regional Stormwater 
inspector training at City of 
Hayward 

6/9 All Inspectors and Coach 

MEDS Coalition meeting 6/20 Doug 
30 of 101



AActivity  DDate of Event  AAttendees  
Industrial Pretreatment 

Sponsored Training 
6/22 All Inspectors, Coach, Technical 

Services Manager 
IAC- Wastewater Compliance 

Strategies, New Metal 
Finishing regulated process 

6/23 IAC Members, inspectors 

Residential FOG Outreach in 
the Newark area 

6/29 Doug, Jason, Victor 

  
 
Engineering/Construction 

 
No. of projects under construction: 99 
 

 CConstruction Projects  Capital  
($1000)  

Scheduled 
CCompletion 

Completed 
SScope 

Completed  
Time  

Comments for   
JJune 22016  Activitiies 

1. Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project – 
Curtis 

$9,990 12/16 74% 82% Concrete placements 
for scum pit walls and 
splitter box support 
columns have been 
completed. 

2. Fremont and Paseo Padre 
LSs Improvement - Derek 

$2,801 10/16 12% 72% Electrical equipment 
inside Fremont LS 
building demolished 
and removed. The two 
lift pumps at Fremont LS 
were removed. 

3. MCC and PLC Replacement 
Project, Phase 3 – Thomas 

$869 12/16 70% 54% Conduits and 
conductors installation 
at Main Electrical 
Building have been 
completed. 

4. Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project – 
Thomas 

$1,570 1/17 42% 47% Contractor repaired 
coating at the Covered 
Storage and Solar 
Carport and also 
replaced Heat 
Exchanger Nos. 3 and 6. 

5. Aeration Blower Project – 
Curtis 

$1,065 8/16 98% 85% Staff training and 
operational testing for 
the new blower has 
been completed. 

6. Aeration Basins 5-7 
Diffuser Membranes 
Replacement Project – 
Kevin 

$313 9/16 99% 99% Membrane replacement 
has been completed in 
Aeration Basins 5-7.   

7. Alvarado-Niles Road SS 
Rehabilitation Project – 
Chris E. 

$3,283 11/16 29% 39% Eastern main bypass set 
up complete and 
operational.  CIPP Lining 
shots #1-#4 complete. 

31 of 101



 CConstruction Projects  CCapital  
(($1000)  

SScheduled 
CCompletion  

CCompleted 
SScope  

CCompleted  
TTime  

CComments for    
JJune  220166  AActivitiies  

8. Pine St. Easement 
Improvements –  
Chris E. 

$184 10/16 0% 0% Construction awarded 
to Valentine Corp. on 
6/13.  NTP issued for 
7/5. 

9. Newark Backyard SS 
Relocation Project Phase 3 
–Andrew/Rollie 

$2,107 09/16 24% 40% Sewer mains on Noel 
Avenue and Wilma 
Avenue have been 
installed.  Lateral 
installations for Noel 
Avenue began on 6/30. 

 
DDesign/Study 

 
No. of projects in design/study phase: 66 

 
 DDesign/Study Projects  Capital  

($1000)  
Scheduled 

CCompletion 
Completed 

SScope 
Completed  

Time  
Comments for  
June 22016  Activities  

1. Alvarado Basin Master 
Plan Flow Monitoring and 
Condition Assessment - 
Rollie 

$90 6/16 
 

90% 100% Condition assessment 
was completed.  
Consultant will be 
working on the draft 
report next. 

2. Plant Solids System / 
Capacity Assessment – 
Curtis 

$238 6/16 65% 100% Study in progress.  
Chapter 3 – Process 
Optimization and Class 
A Option Analysis to be 
submitted in July. 

3. Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement - Thomas 

$160 6/16 100% 100% The project was 
advertised on 6/28. 

4. Recycled Water Feasibility 
Study Update – Chris E. 

$130 08/16 92% 92% Study is in progress. 

5. Sludge Degritter System 
Project – Kevin 

$198 08/16 85% 85% Final Design Submittal 
is in progress.  Bid 
advertisement is 
scheduled for 7/15 

6. Cogeneration 
Improvements Project – 
Phase II - Derek 

$27 09/16 60% 49% Staff will re-advertise in 
September 2016. 
Design for additional 
scope items are in 
progress. 

 

32 of 101



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

June 2016 
    
 
Progress/Accomplishments     
           

Completed 15 miles of cleaning of sewer lines in June 
Completed 6 miles of televising of sewer lines in June 
Responded to 23 service request calls in June 
Completed a total of 23 main repairs in June 
One spill for the month of June, Category 3  
Completed Trouble Calls and SSO Training 
Completed Harassment-Free Workplace Training 
Written Test for CSWI recruitment conducted. 

 

                   Bay Area Spills for Same Time Period 

                                                                                   

 
 
 33 of 101



 
Performance Measures 
 
 

  

                
 
 
 34 of 101



 
 
 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

 
Support Team Work Order Status: 

   
 
C/S Maintenance Status: 

  

  

 Jul         Sep          Nov          Jan           Mar         May 

35 of 101



Future Planning

Other

                FMC 
                 Activities Report

                June 2016

Progress/Accomplishments

Effluent Pump No. 2 rebuild

Plant shutdown scheduled for 7/22 to repair leaking gates at CB2 and inspect internal lift pumps No. 5 - 8

Completed 95% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of June
Completed 114 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of June
Secondary Clarifier No. 1 annual maintenance
Mixing Pump No. 6a rebuild
Scrubber No. 4 & No. 5 eyewash installation

Secondary Clairifier No. 2 annual maintenance

Site Waste Pump No. 3 installation

Centrifuge No. 1 3,000 hr. service

CB1 actuator replacements

Co-Gen No. 1 engine swap

Performance Measurements

0

5

10

15

20

Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction 136 of 101



0

25

50

75

100

125

150

N
o.

  o
f  

W
O

s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction 237 of 101



A condition accessment was conducted on aeration basin membranes and the final consultant 
report was received. 

Create a codigestion report documenting the effort and presenting the results.
Meet With EBDA to agree on the method of evaluating the cost of EBDA power. Work with IT to 
develop a template to download SCADA system data for the calculation of the cost of EBDA  
power.

Future Planning

Conducted PO III/PO III Trainee recruitment.

The New Laboratory ICP was received.  Startup and commissioning is expected in July 2016.

Meet with BAAQMD to discuss the current permit condition for the Plant Cogeneration system.

Conducted testing/operation of high speed blower.
Created and presented alternatives for a reclaimed water demonstration project at the June 13, 
2016 Board meeting.
Concluded the Organic Codigestion Study ahead of schedule. Testing equipment was 
disassembled and rental equipment cleaned and returned. 

The R&S team continued to support the CIP solids capacity study.  In June, modeling results were 
reviewed and input data was qualified to ensure an accurate prediction of future solids capacity 
needs.
Attended an annual meeting with BAAQMD and BACWA to discuss the Air board's intended 
regulatory changes.

Participated in Plant shutdown to replace main power meter.

Cogen system produced 33% of power consumed for the month of June.

Other

 Met with EBDA and Automated Network Controls to determine data collection needs to 
evaluate the cost of the EBDA pump station power.

Evaluate the current electrical and gas usage to determine whether there are more 
advantageous alternatives.

Treatment & Disposal
Activities Report

June 2016

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 100% preventive maintenance activities for the month of June.
Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

38 of 101



Performance Measurements

18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

73% 74% 70%
54% 56%

74%
59% 51%

73% 73%

52%

29% 33%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h 

/1
00

00

Pe
rc

en
t P

ro
du

ce
d

Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh/10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16
Copper, μg/l 78 6.7 6.7 6.6
Mercury, μg/l 0.066 0.00389 0.00362 0.00393
Cyanide, μg/l 42 < 3 7 < 2
Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 36 - 49 37 - 44 34 - 43
Dioxin-Toxicity Equivalent (TEQ), μg/l 2.8 x 10-8 not tested not tested not tested
Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

500 28 - 38 16 - 64 14 - 25
1100 42 - 74 59 - 65 33 - 77

Enterococci *
242 41 - 84 52 - 110 20 - 62

* Enterococci values are the weekly concentration range not the 5-Sample Geometric Mean range.

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 
concentration.

39 of 101



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney

DATE: July 25, 2016 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

 Pamela Arends-King, Business Services Manager/CFO 
 Sheila Tolbert, Human Resources Manager 
                       Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager 

 
SUBJECT:          Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of July 25, 2016 
                           Proposed Changes to the District Mission Statement  
  
Recommendation 
 
Review proposed new language in the District Vision and Mission Statements and consider 
approval of changes. 
 
Background 

The Executive Team reviews the District’s Vision and Mission statements on an annual basis 
during strategic planning activities.  Due to the changing nature of the water and wastewater 
industry, that team proposed the addition of language reflecting the District’s desire to 
increase recycling and beneficial resource reuse activities to minimize our impacts on the 
environment. 
 
The process for revision of this critical document began in FY16, and has included the following 
process steps to date: 
 

The new language originally proposed by the Executive Team was documented  
The proposed language was reviewed by Union Leadership  
The proposed revisions were shared with the (then) Budget & Finance Committee; 
additional revisions were suggested/discussed/documented 

40 of 101



The revised (DRAFT) statements were shared with the Board in September of 2015; 
enabling additional staff review and capturing stakeholder feedback was suggested at 
that time 
The proposed revision was subsequently shared with all USD teams in special meetings 
where direct staff feedback was captured/documented 
A “final” draft revision was generated (attached for your review), showing Board 
member feedback in blue font and staff feedback in black font  

Attachment: Redline of Proposed Changes to Mission Statement  

41 of 101



VISION/MISSION STATEMENT
October, 2015 revision DRAFT

To safely and responsibly collect, treat and recover wastewater and 
process by-products generated by our customers, while protecting 

human health and improving the environment in a way that benefits the 
Tri-Cities and all USD stakeholders. 

How we accomplish our Mission:

We demonstrate our commitment to safety by:
Having an effective safety program
Protecting employees and the community
Allocating resources to ensure safe operations (equipment, training, staff)
Planning to work safely
Collaboratively promoting a safe work environment

We demonstrate responsibility by:
Being fiscally responsible
Being accountable for our actions and decisions
Anticipating and meeting future needs and demonstrating stewardship
Maintaining compliance with laws and regulations
Effectively managing our assets
Continuously improving our processes
Looking for innovative ways to reduce or reuse our waste streams

We collect, treat and recover/reuse wastewater, which includes: 
Maintaining our infrastructure
Providing capacity in the collection system and plant
Regulating connections 
Increasing our efforts for resource recovery (biogas, biosolids, etc.)
Effectively using technology
Having effective pretreatment and pollution prevention programs
Testing for compliance
Exploring ways to maximize water reclamation and reuse potential
Working towards energy neutrality

We protect human health by:
Preventing sewer spills and back-ups
Reducing health risks through treatment of wastewater
Responding to emergencies

Commented [LB2]: Teams want consistency in the vision
and mission statements; suggested repurpose here as well.  
No one likes reuse

Commented [LB1]: Alternate suggestion was “… recover
resources generated by our customers..”

Commented [LB3]: Board originally referenced “when 
possible” here, but later rescinded that position

Commented [LB4]: Board members thought it was 
important to retain mention of our original customers- the Tri 
Cities

Commented [LB5]: Several teams felt the terms 
stakeholder and groups were unnecessarily redundant.

Commented [LB6]: Board was concerned that the term 
“stakeholder” might seem too vague to the public

Commented [LB7]: Some teams wanted to add necessary 
or some other indicator of the level of commitment to 
resource allocation; more just removed the word adequate

Commented [LB8]: Some suggested “proven” since we 
are not typically early adopters

Commented [LB9]: Some teams suggested repurpose as a 
better term

Commented [LB10]: Added per Board input

Commented [LB11]: Added per Board input

Commented [LB12]: A few teams suggested moving this 
under “Environment”

42 of 101



VISION/MISSION STATEMENT
October, 2015 revision DRAFT

We improve and enhance the environment by:
Improving water quality in the San Francisco Bay estuary  
Maintaining compliance with effluent and air quality regulations
Promoting pollution prevention through outreach and educational 
programs
Utilizing solar installations whenever feasible; maximizing our use of green 
energy sources

We benefit our stakeholders by: 

Complying with all local, state, and federal regulations, protecting the 
environment and controlling odors
Communicating with the public and bringing awareness about wastewater 
issues
Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid
Participating in community outreach activities 
Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in 
professional associations, partnering with other agencies and 
organizations, and sharing best practices
Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies

Providing award-winning, reliable service
Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value
Promptly responding to customers’ needs
Being professional and courteous
Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs
Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing 
capacity

Providing a safe work environment
Recognizing employee contributions
Encouraging cooperation and collaboration 
Demonstrating equality and fairness
Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and 
creativity
Providing training and resources
Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment
Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly

  
  

C
us

to
m

er
 

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s

C
om

m
un

ity

Commented [LB13]: “Enhance” added per Board

Commented [LB14]: Teams believe that the Bay is the 
estuary

Commented [LB15]: Most teams think the term 
stakeholder covers and that group is not needed

Commented [LB16]: Order of stakeholder groups moved 
per Board

Commented [LB17]: This bullet added as top in 
Community per Board

Commented [LB18]: Changed to “bringing awareness” 
versus educating per Board/GM

Commented [LB19]: Some suggest Excellent here instead 
of award winning, feeling that we are “on the hook” to keep 
winning awards otherwise

43 of 101



DDirectors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
OOfficers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DDATE: July 19, 2016 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach 
Rod Schurman, Associate Engineer 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of July 25, 2016 
 Consider a Resolution to Accept the Assignment of Right to Install Sewers for 

Tracts 8106 and 8126 – Mission Creek, Located along SFPUC Property at 
Tangelo Court in the City of Fremont 

  
Recommendation 
 
Consider a Resolution to accept the Assignment of Right to Install Sewers for Tracts 8106 and 
8126 – Mission Creek, located along San Francisco Public Utilities Commission’s (SFPUC) 
property at Tangelo Court in the city of Fremont. 
 
Background 
 
42186 Palm Avenue Developers, LLC is constructing seventeen, single-family, residential units for 
Tract 8106 and twenty-five, single–family, residential units for Tract 8126 at Tangelo Court, east 
of Palm Avenue, in the city of Fremont.  The two tracts are separated by an eighty-foot wide strip 
of land owned by the SFPUC that is roughly parallel to and approximately seven hundred feet 
east of Palm Avenue.  A vicinity map is attached.  Sanitary sewer service to the residential 
development will be provided by the construction of a new 8-inch main in Tangelo Court, a 
public street, connected to an existing 8-inch main in Palm Avenue. 
 
In 1951, the SFPUC purchased the eighty-foot wide strip of land from several owners and it was 
stipulated in the deeds that the parcels shall retain the right to install sewers and other 
improvements across the SFPUC land.  On June 12, 2015, 42186 Palm Avenue Developers, LLC, 

44 of 101



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of July 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
the successor in the interest to the right to install sewers and other improvements over the 
SFPUC land, assigned Union Sanitary District the right to construct, maintain, use, repair, replace 
and renew sewers in accordance with the original deed. 
 
42186 Palm Avenue Developers, LLC has constructed the new 8-inch sewer main in Tangelo 
Court.  The portion of the main that crosses the SFPUC land was installed within a 30-inch steel 
casing, pursuant to SFPUC Crossing License No. P4232. 
 
District staff has reviewed the Assignment of Right to Install Sewers, legal description and deeds, 
and recommends approval. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RA/RS:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Vicinity Map 

Resolution 
Assignment of Right to Install Sewers 

 Original Grant Deed 
  

45 of 101



Legend

Vicinity Map, Tracts 8106 & 8126 - Mission Creek
Assignment of Right to Install Sewers

Disclaimer:
The information on this map is provided by Union Sanitary District (USD) for internal use only.
Such information is derived from multiple sources which may not be current, be outside the control of USD,
and may be of indeterminate accuracy.  The information provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date,
and any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose whatsoever does so
solely at their own risk.

For USD use only

Site

0 400ft200

Printed: 7/18/2016 8:42:46 of 101

SFPUC Land

New 8"
Sanitary
Sewer
Main



RESOLUTION NO. _________

ACCEPT THE ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHT TO INSTALL SEWERS
FOR TRACTS 8106 AND 8126 – MISSION CREEK

LOCATED ALONG SFPUC PROPERTY AT TANGELO COURT
IN THE CITY OF FREMONT, CALIFORNIA

RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT,
that it hereby accepts the Assignment of Right to Install Sewers from 42186 Palm 
Avenue Developers, LLC executed on June 12, 2015, as described in the 
Assignment of Right to Install Sewers and by attached Deed.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors of the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT authorize the General Manager/District Engineer, or his 
designee, to execute and attend to the recordation thereof.

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on July 25, 2016: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

TOM HANDLEY
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District 

Attest:

ANJALI LATHI
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

47 of 101



48 of 101



49 of 101



50 of 101



51 of 101



Ala. Co.

 E.  MARGARET  hla wife, the
 hereinafter referred to as the Grantors, hereby grant to

AND  OF SAM FRANCISCO.,  corporation,  second party,
hereinafter referred to  following deaoribed  prop-
erty situated  the County of Alameda,  of California:

A  of land  wide, lying  either aide
• of the  and extensions thereto,

 at a. point in the common  between that
certain parcel of  by Chieko  Hideo
to Leo C« Reuter by deed dated  and recorded

 in Book  at page  Records,
 County, herein  to  the Reuter paroel and'

that certain paroel oonveyed by  formerly
 to  8.  and  his wife,

by  dated April  and  fi, 1987 in
Book 1537  page  Official Records,  County,
herein  as the  paroel,'  point being

 from the  of Palm Avenue
 along aaid  boundary  East

 thence froa said point of commencement, South
 the

between  MoBrlde  :and that pertain . 
parcel  George  ux.',

 dated' January 2i  and  5,
Book  at  here-
in referred  the  aaid point being dis-
tant along aaid  from
above mentioned  Worth.
feet; the northerly and of
ary  Router and  •  southerly

. end of  rtrip being the
 tha MoBrlde and  of

,• an  •.' "- '•" • • '
 23,

of,  filed
20,

. ' - .  -
 paroel of

 property  Grantors  any available

52 of 101



roads or
 .'

 th. right to
 ,h .

 . .

 and  -  .

53 of 101



3.  installation of  the City 's
 shall  the  at

written notice  commencing construction  any additional aqueduct
pipe  and other  or  said
parcel of real property.

'  A l l  to to« given Between the parties hereto
 writing and  personally or by  the  in  United

States  postage prepaid and addressed to  at the off ice of
Manager  City Hal l ,  Francisco,  and to
Grantors at  1, Box 9*  California, and the  notice
aball be binding upon any successor  interest of the Grantors unless . 

the  notified in  the  of
interest in which  aaid- notice of the  to be  thereto.

 The tops of a l l of City's pipe lines and conduits shall be
la id below the surface of the ground and  to a depth of  less
than 16* inches,  l i as appurtenances which may be constructed

 with or above the surface of the
••  covenants herein  shall  to the benefit of,
 bind, the heirs, successors and assigns of  respective parties

hereto.

IN  the  parties have executed this
conveyance this  of  ,

54 of 101



1

RECORDED  OF
 L A M B D A

E A S T  CO.

 NOV

.  RECORDS OF
ALAMEDA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

COUNTY

STATE OF
Gty  of San  J 

55 of 101



' ' ' IN

,9'

 CD

o

—

 C O U N T Y O F S A N

P U B L I C
S A N F R A N C I S C O W A T E R D E P A R T M E N T

B A Y  Ft.  3 

A L A M E D A COUNTY
A P P R O V E D

S C A L E

 ANC  ENOINECII

BY  DT  NO.

DATE
II.

REVISED
56 of 101



57 of 101



DDirectors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
OOfficers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DDATE: July 18, 2016 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Kevin Chun, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of July 25, 2016 

Consider a Resolution to Accept the Construction of the Aeration Basins 5-7 
Diffuser Membranes Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, 
Inc. and Authorize Recordation of a Notice of Completion

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board consider a resolution to accept the construction of the Aeration 
Basins 5-7 Diffuser Membranes Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc. (GSE) 
and authorize the recordation of a Notice of Completion. 
 
Background 
 
The District operates a fine bubble aeration system in Aeration Basins 5 through 7.  The system 
distributes air to promote the growth of microorganisms that feed on organic matter in the 
wastewater.  The system consists of a network of pipes and 9-inch diameter rubber disc diffuser 
membranes.  The diffuser membranes have an anticipated life of five to seven years.  The 
diffuser membranes in Aeration Basins 5 through 7 were installed in 2004 and 2005 and were 
past their useful service life.  Replacement of the diffuser membranes in Aeration Basins 5 
through 7 will allow the District to continue to effectively treat wastewater. 
 
On March 28, 2016, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Aeration Basins 5-7 
Diffuser Membranes Replacement Project in the amount of $312,487 to GSE.  The purpose of 
the project was to replace 6,981 diffuser membranes in Aeration Basins 5 through 7.  The project 
was designed in-house by District staff.  Figure 1 shows the location of the basins. 
 

58 of 101



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of July 25, 2016 
Page 2 
 
CConstruction Contract 
 
Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to GSE on April 25, 2016, with a scheduled completion date of 
September 1, 2016.  GSE substantially completed the Project on July 11, 2016, 52 calendar days 
earlier than the scheduled completion date.  The earlier completion date is primarily attributable 
to both the Contractor’s and District’s efforts to complete the Project in a timely manner and the 
fact that no repairs to pre-existing damage of the air piping were identified during the Project. 
Construction management was performed in-house by District staff.  Figures 2 through 4 include 
construction photos of the diffuser membranes replacement inside the aeration basins. 
 
Change Order Summary 
 
The construction contract included three (3) change orders with a total credit of $18,282, which 
is approximately -5.9% of the original contract amount.  The large credit amount is due to the 
fact that no repairs to the air piping was necessary, so the bid allowance in Bid Item No. 6 was 
deleted by change order.  All negotiations have been completed and the change orders 
executed.  A summary of the change orders is provided in Table 1. 
 

Table 1 
Change Order Summary 

 
No.  Description  Amount  

1 Aeration Basin No. 5 – Per Staff’s Request, Replace Purge Assembly 
Stainless Steel Components with PVC Components  

$805 

2 Aeration Basin Nos. 6 and 7 – Per Staff’s Request, Replace Purge 
Assembly Stainless Steel Components with PVC Components 

$913 

3 Delete Bid Item No. 6 – Repairs of Pre-existing Damage of Air Piping -$20,000 
 TTotal Change Order Amount:  -$18,282 

 
GSE has completed all punchlist items and the District has assumed beneficial use of the Project. 
 
Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Aeration Basins 5-7 Diffuser 
Membranes Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc. and authorize the 
recordation of a Notice of Completion. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/KC:ks 
 
 
Attachments: Figure 1 – Site Plan 

Figures 2 through 4 – Construction Photos 
Resolution 

 Notice of Completion 

59 of 101



FI
G

U
R

E
 1

  –
A

E
R

A
TI

O
N

 B
A

S
IN

 5
-7

 D
IF

FU
S

E
R

 M
E

M
B

R
A

N
E

S
 R

E
P

LA
C

E
M

E
N

T
P

R
O

JE
C

T

60
 o

f 1
01



Figure 2 – Worker uses a tool to tighten the diffuser membrane holder ring.

61 of 101



Figure 3 – Workers prepared the diffuser membrane holders before installing the new membranes.

62 of 101



Figure 4 – The diffuser membrane holders are located approximately 20 feet below the roof of Aeration Basins 5-7.

63 of 101



RESOLUTION NO. ____

ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE 
AERATION BASINS 5-7 DIFFUSER MEMBRANES REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT LOCATED IN THE CITY OF UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA 

FROM GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC.  

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT that it hereby accepts the Aeration Basins 5-7 Diffuser Membranes 
Replacement Project from GSE Construction Company, Inc. effective July 25,
2016.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors of the UNION 
SANITARY DISTRICT authorize the General Manager/District Engineer, or his 
designee, to execute and record a “Notice of Completion” for the Project.

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on July 25, 2016: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

TOM HANDLEY
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District 

Attest:

ANJALI LATHI
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

64 of 101



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED 
RETURN TO:

Regina McEvoy
Union Sanitary District
5072 Benson Road
Union City, CA 94587

NO RECORDING FEE – PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 6103 & 27283

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, 
California, that the work hereinafter described, the contract for the construction of which was 
entered into on March 28, 2016, by said District and GSE Construction Company, Inc., 6950
Preston Avenue, Livermore, CA 94551, Contractor for the Project, “Aeration Basins 5-7 Diffuser 
Membranes Replacement Project”, was substantially completed on July 11, 2016 and accepted 
by said District on July 25, 2016. 

The name and address of the owner is the UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, at 5072 Benson 
Road, Union City, CA  94587. 

The estate or interest of the owner is: FEE SIMPLE ABSOLUTE

The description of the site where said work was performed and completed is Union Sanitary 
District’s Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant, located at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 
94587, County of Alameda, State of California.

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on __________________________ at UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA.

________________________
PAUL R. ELDREDGE, P.E.
GENERAL MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

65 of 101



66 of 101



67 of 101



68 of 101



69 of 101



70 of 101



71 of 101



72 of 101



Directors
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E
General Manager/District 
Engineer 

Karen W. Murphy
Attorney 

DATE: July 8, 2016 

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Pamela Arends-King, Business Services Manager/CFO 
Roslyn Fuller, Purchasing Agent 
Nina Narvaez, Administrative Specialist I 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 July 25, 2016 
Information item:  CAL-CARD QUARTERLY MERCHANT ACTIVITY REPORT 

Recommendation 

Information Only 

Information 

The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity for the fourth 
quarter of FY 2016.  This covers transactions for the CAL-Card billing period April 25, 2016 through 
June 22, 2016. During this quarter, we had 293 transactions totaling $106,726.16. 

73 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS.COM 9300 WEST DES MOIN IA $ 0.00 0 $ 0.00 $ 115.36 4 $ (115.36) 0.00% 4 $ 9.99
TRADE

47970 OFFICE 5968 AMAZONPRIME AMZN.COM/PRME WA 0.00 0 0.00 108.41 1 (108.41) 0.00% 1 0.00
SERVICES MEMBERSHIP

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CA WATER ENV 5103827800 CA 0.00 0 0.00 75.00 1 (75.00) 0.00% 1 0.00
EXPENS ASSN

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS ROEBUCK SAN RAFAEL CA 0.00 0 0.00 32.42 1 (32.42) 0.00% 1 2.95
TRADE 1528

281845 Food Exceptions 5411 SAFEWAY FREMONT CA 4.54 1 4.54 0.00 0 4.54 0.00% 1 0.00
STORE00003095

217413 Prohibited Tran 7993 GAMESTOP #3629 UNION CITY CA 8.79 1 8.79 0.00 0 8.79 0.01% 1 0.00
141822 Hardware Supply 5200 LOWES #01132* UNION CITY CA 10.98 1 10.98 0.00 0 10.98 0.01% 1 1.00
284298 VTA Catering 5812 YALLA FREMONT 925-566-7800 CA 11.99 1 11.99 0.00 0 11.99 0.01% 1 0.00

3101
137510 Rialto 9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA 13.00 1 13.00 0.00 0 13.00 0.01% 1 0.00

RECORDS
47979 WHOLESALE 5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 16.37 1 16.37 0.00 0 16.37 0.02% 1 1.49

TRADE
47961 AUTO/RV 5511 FREMONT FREMONT CA 16.95 1 16.95 0.00 0 16.95 0.02% 1 0.00

DEALERS CHEVROLET
47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 17.28 1 17.28 0.00 0 17.28 0.02% 1 1.58

SUPPLIES AMZN.COM/BILL
47970 OFFICE 7399 ACT*MSA-SF BAY 877-551-5560 TX 20.00 1 20.00 0.00 0 20.00 0.02% 1 0.00

SERVICES AREA CH
47972 OTHER 5732 BATTERIESDIRECT 888-320-1212 CA 21.87 1 21.87 0.00 0 21.87 0.02% 1 0.00

INC
47978 VEHICLE 4784 FASTRAK CSC 415-486-8655 CA 25.00 1 25.00 0.00 0 25.00 0.02% 1 0.00

EXPENSE
47978 VEHICLE 5542 BP#0369082PMG CLEVELAND OH 25.23 1 25.23 0.00 0 25.23 0.02% 1 0.00

EXPENSE CLE AIRPRT
47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX 28.20 1 28.20 0.00 0 28.20 0.03% 1 0.00

5262406975899
217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 CALIFORNIA 530-755-4922 CA 39.00 1 39.00 0.00 0 39.00 0.04% 1 0.00

ASSOCIATION

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     1
74 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47970 OFFICE 7399 YAHOO SMALL 866-438-1582 CA $ 41.82 3 $ 13.94 $ 0.00 0 $ 41.82 0.04% 3 $ 0.00
SERVICES BUSINESS

217413 Prohibited Tran 5699 ETSY.COM 888-961-4798 NY 47.45 1 47.45 0.00 0 47.45 0.04% 1 0.00
47970 OFFICE 7333 STK*BIGSTOCKPH 855-272-5125 NY 49.00 1 49.00 0.00 0 49.00 0.05% 1 0.00

SERVICES OTO.COM
281845 Food Exceptions 5411 TARGET HAYWARD CA 98.98 1 98.98 49.49 1 49.49 0.05% 2 9.00

00014720
47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5965 OFFICE DEPOT 800-463-3768 CA 52.77 1 52.77 0.00 0 52.77 0.05% 1 4.80

E 1135
47978 VEHICLE 5533 4 STATE 417-6242900 MO 53.50 1 53.50 0.00 0 53.50 0.05% 1 0.00

EXPENSE TRUCKS-POSWB
47972 OTHER 5999 JET.COM 855-538-4323 NJ 54.46 1 54.46 0.00 0 54.46 0.05% 1 0.00

137510 Rialto 9399 GOVTELLERCONVE 877-4328871 NY 56.47 1 56.47 0.00 0 56.47 0.05% 1 0.00
NFEE

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS OUTLET 847-286-2500 IL 57.16 1 57.16 0.00 0 57.16 0.05% 1 5.19
TRADE 9322

289498 IT SOFTWARE 5734 CBI*WINZIP 800-799-9570 IL 59.90 1 59.90 0.00 0 59.90 0.06% 1 0.00
CLEVERBRIDG

281845 Food Exceptions 5462 NOTHING BUNDT FREMONT CA 61.50 1 61.50 0.00 0 61.50 0.06% 1 0.00
CAKES 39

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 INTELLIGEN, VIEW 877-484-3948 FL 72.30 1 72.30 0.00 0 72.30 0.07% 1 0.00
TRADE GUARD

284298 VTA Catering 5812 CHILI'S UNION CITY UNION CITY CA 72.48 1 72.48 0.00 0 72.48 0.07% 1 0.00
217413 Prohibited Tran 5992 SHARONS 510-366-7189 CA 73.90 1 73.90 0.00 0 73.90 0.07% 1 0.00

FREMONT FLORIST
281845 Food Exceptions 5411 LUCKY #782 UNION UNION CITY CA 75.71 3 25.24 0.00 0 75.71 0.07% 3 0.00

CI
47979 WHOLESALE 5074 AMERICANHVACPA 866-432-8551 CA 87.11 1 87.11 0.00 0 87.11 0.08% 1 0.00

TRADE RTS.COM
47979 WHOLESALE 5099 NPI/RAM MOUNTS 206-763-8361 WA 96.00 1 96.00 0.00 0 96.00 0.09% 1 0.00

TRADE
47970 OFFICE 5968 AMAZONPRIME AMZN.COM/PRME WA 108.41 1 108.41 0.00 0 108.41 0.10% 1 0.00

SERVICES MEMBERSHIP
47979 WHOLESALE 5065 NEWARKINONE-US 773-9075740 IL 110.38 1 110.38 0.00 0 110.38 0.10% 1 8.87

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     2
75 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE 00000109
47963 BUSINESS 8398 MMANC 855-737-2687 CA 115.00 1 115.00 0.00 0 115.00 0.11% 1 0.00

EXPENS
284298 VTA Catering 5812 THAI KITCHEN UNION CITY CA 117.97 2 58.99 0.00 0 117.97 0.11% 2 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL BUS 800-456-3355 TX 118.78 1 118.78 0.00 0 118.78 0.11% 1 10.80
TRADE ONLINE

217413 Prohibited Tran 7216 GREEN LEAF FREMONT CA 120.00 4 30.00 0.00 0 120.00 0.11% 4 0.00
CLEANERS

47978 VEHICLE 5533 WESTERN ENGINE 661-397-9155 CA 123.62 1 123.62 0.00 0 123.62 0.12% 1 0.00
EXPENSE DISTRBT

47972 OTHER 5661 MUCKANDSTUFF 817-326-5470 TX 129.95 1 129.95 0.00 0 129.95 0.12% 1 0.00
141822 Hardware Supply 5200 LOWES #01895* FREMONT CA 130.31 1 130.31 0.00 0 130.31 0.12% 1 11.31

47979 WHOLESALE 5099 IN *SWAN 707-7461989 CA 137.74 2 68.87 0.00 0 137.74 0.13% 2 11.02
TRADE ASSOCIATES INCOR

289779 COMPUTER 4816 DROPBOX*PF6JL7F DB.TT/CCHELP CA 138.00 1 138.00 0.00 0 138.00 0.13% 1 0.00
HPQKY

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 TIFCO INDUSTRIES 8-663-3590308 TX 139.08 1 139.08 0.00 0 139.08 0.13% 1 9.00
TRADE INC

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 ORCHARD SUPPLY FREMONT CA 145.01 1 145.01 0.00 0 145.01 0.14% 1 0.00
#100

281845 Food Exceptions 5814 CHIPOTLE 1529 UNION CITY CA 145.99 5 29.20 0.00 0 145.99 0.14% 5 0.00
212656 SCCLD AUTO 5599 PETERSON SAN SAN LEANDRO CA 150.38 1 150.38 0.00 0 150.38 0.14% 1 0.00

LEANDRO
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 DRAINCABLESDIRE 419-838-0247 OH 157.47 1 157.47 0.00 0 157.47 0.15% 1 0.00

TRADE CT
217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 MISAC 714-738-5309 CA 160.00 1 160.00 0.00 0 160.00 0.15% 1 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 SHAMROCK 714-4428241 CA 160.11 1 160.11 0.00 0 160.11 0.15% 1 0.00
TRADE SUPPLY CO INC

47971 OFFICE 5943 OFFICEMAX/OFFIC UNION CITY CA 164.97 1 164.97 0.00 0 164.97 0.16% 1 15.00
SUPPLIES EDEPOT6177

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 ASQ ECOMMERCE 414-2728575 WI 169.00 1 169.00 0.00 0 169.00 0.16% 1 0.00
47979 WHOLESALE 5039 HD SUPPLY WHITE 407-893-6631 CA 169.59 1 169.59 0.00 0 169.59 0.16% 1 0.00

TRADE CAP #022
47979 WHOLESALE 5065 SCHNEIDERELECT 401-398-8450N RI 172.43 1 172.43 0.00 0 172.43 0.16% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     3
76 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE RIC IT C
47972 OTHER 5661 MUCKANDSTUFF 352-751-3867 FL 179.95 1 179.95 0.00 0 179.95 0.17% 1 0.00
47962 BUILDING 780 REED AND SAN JOSE CA 184.88 1 184.88 0.00 0 184.88 0.17% 1 14.88

SERVIC GRAHAM INC
47961 AUTO/RV 5511 MISSION VALLEY 408-933-2300 CA 190.64 1 190.64 0.00 0 190.64 0.18% 1 0.00

DEALERS FORD PARTS
47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 ORIENTAL 800-228-0475 NE 193.59 1 193.59 0.00 0 193.59 0.18% 1 0.00

E TRADING CO
47978 VEHICLE 5533 DHS EQUIPMENT 866-611-9369 FL 196.08 1 196.08 0.00 0 196.08 0.18% 1 0.00

EXPENSE
47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS ROEBUCK PLEASANTON CA 197.09 1 197.09 0.00 0 197.09 0.19% 1 17.10

TRADE 1019
47972 OTHER 5732 FRY'S FREMONT CA 198.15 1 198.15 0.00 0 198.15 0.19% 1 17.19

ELECTRONICS #21
47963 BUSINESS 8299 CA-NV SECTION, 909-481-7200 CA 200.00 1 200.00 0.00 0 200.00 0.19% 1 0.00

EXPENS AWWA
141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT NEWARK CA 205.22 3 68.41 0.00 0 205.22 0.19% 3 17.81

#6964
47962 BUILDING 7217 KING KOVERS OF FREMONT CA 205.70 1 205.70 0.00 0 205.70 0.19% 1 0.00

SERVIC FREMONT
281845 Food Exceptions 5814 MR PICKLES 325 - UNION CITY CA 207.79 3 69.26 0.00 0 207.79 0.20% 3 0.00

UNION
47978 VEHICLE 5533 ALLIED AUTO FREMONT CA 213.50 1 213.50 0.00 0 213.50 0.20% 1 0.00

EXPENSE STORES
47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX 214.96 1 214.96 0.00 0 214.96 0.20% 1 0.00

5262401210094
289779 COMPUTER 4816 DRI*KWIZCOM ELEMENT5.INFO MN 220.00 1 220.00 0.00 0 220.00 0.21% 1 0.00

47963 BUSINESS 8299 ATD 703-683-8100 VA 229.00 1 229.00 0.00 0 229.00 0.22% 1 0.00
EXPENS

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX 236.97 1 236.97 0.00 0 236.97 0.22% 1 0.00
5262401223211

47970 OFFICE 7399 ACT*MSA SAN 877-551-5560 TX 240.00 2 120.00 0.00 0 240.00 0.23% 2 0.00
SERVICES FRANCISCO

47963 BUSINESS 8999 IN *AIM TRAINING 800-3053855 CA 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.24% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     4
77 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 EXPENS SOLUTION
252142 MCC7392 7392 IN *TURNER RISK 510-3646010 CA 250.00 1 250.00 0.00 0 250.00 0.24% 1 0.00

CONSULTIN
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 BLACKBURN 402-8874161 NE 253.34 1 253.34 0.00 0 253.34 0.24% 1 14.99

TRADE MANUFACTURING C
289498 IT SOFTWARE 5734 BAMBOO 877-226-2662 VA 273.00 1 273.00 0.00 0 273.00 0.26% 1 0.00

SOLUTIONS
47978 VEHICLE 7531 GOLDEN GATE OAKLAND CA 290.02 2 145.01 0.00 0 290.02 0.27% 2 25.16

EXPENSE TRUCK CENTER
47970 OFFICE 7399 NEWARK 510-744-1000 CA 294.00 3 98.00 0.00 0 294.00 0.28% 3 0.00

SERVICES CHAMBER OF 
COMMERC

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 BALL SALES & 714-5967300 CA 296.10 1 296.10 0.00 0 296.10 0.28% 1 25.50
TRADE ENGINEERIN

47970 OFFICE 5968 SURVEYMONKEY.C 971-2445555 CA 300.00 1 300.00 0.00 0 300.00 0.28% 1 0.00
SERVICES OM

47979 WHOLESALE 5074 CAL-STEAM 2504 510-512-7700 CA 468.91 2 234.46 168.72 1 300.19 0.28% 3 15.33
TRADE

217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 WEF WYTHE 800-6660206 VA 303.50 2 151.75 0.00 0 303.50 0.29% 2 0.00
47979 WHOLESALE 5211 GENERAL HAYWARD CA 316.57 1 316.57 0.00 0 316.57 0.30% 1 28.78

TRADE INSULATION 18
47979 WHOLESALE 5039 IN *PEDESTAL CEO, 800-6603072 UT 317.04 1 317.04 0.00 0 317.04 0.30% 1 0.00

TRADE LLC
284298 VTA Catering 5812 BRONCO BILLY'S UNION CITY CA 328.13 3 109.38 0.00 0 328.13 0.31% 3 0.00

PIZZA
212656 SCCLD AUTO 7538 CATS AUTO REPAIR FREMONT CA 341.35 1 341.35 0.00 0 341.35 0.32% 1 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5169 ROYAL MFG CO LP 918-5842671 OK 344.81 1 344.81 0.00 0 344.81 0.32% 1 0.00
TRADE

284298 VTA Catering 5812 TOGOS EATERY UNION CITY CA 348.99 4 87.25 0.00 0 348.99 0.33% 4 0.00
47979 WHOLESALE 5045 NEOGOV 310-4266304 CA 350.00 1 350.00 0.00 0 350.00 0.33% 1 0.00

TRADE
217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 350.00 1 350.00 0.00 0 350.00 0.33% 1 0.00

*PIPEUSERSGR
47963 BUSINESS 8299 FREDPRYOR 800-5563012 KS 350.99 2 175.50 0.00 0 350.99 0.33% 2 21.09

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     5
78 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 EXPENS CAREERTRACK
284298 VTA Catering 5812 TOGOS EATERY UNION CITY CA 373.80 4 93.45 0.00 0 373.80 0.35% 4 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 D & F LIQUIDATORS 510-785-9600 CA 375.10 3 125.03 0.00 0 375.10 0.35% 3 0.00
TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5039 IN *R.E.P. NUT N 650-9401500 CA 380.41 1 380.41 0.00 0 380.41 0.36% 1 31.41
TRADE BOLT GUY

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DELL SALES & 866-393-9460 TX 381.04 1 381.04 0.00 0 381.04 0.36% 1 34.64
TRADE SERVICE

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX 385.96 1 385.96 0.00 0 385.96 0.36% 1 0.00

137510 Rialto 9399 402-935-7733 DC 390.00 1 390.00 0.00 0 390.00 0.37% 1 0.00
47979 WHOLESALE 5046 SAN LEANDRO CA 393.44 1 393.44 0.00 0 393.44 0.37% 1 0.00

TRADE
47970 OFFICE 8911 925-2102277 CO 400.00 2 200.00 0.00 0 400.00 0.38% 2 0.00

SERVICES
217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 702-989-8095 NV 400.00 1 400.00 0.00 0 400.00 0.38% 1 0.00

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964

5262195303081
PAYPAL
PETERSON
TRUCKS SL
BROWN AND 
CALDWELL
NATIONAL
PROCUREMENT
INST
CDW GOVERNMENT 800-800-4239 IL 410.67 2 205.34 0.00 0 410.67 0.39% 2 20.37

E
47979 WHOLESALE 5065 WWW.SUPERBRIG WWW.SUPERBRIG MO 435.16 1 435.16 0.00 0 435.16 0.41% 1 0.00

TRADE HTLEDS.CO
47979 WHOLESALE 5065 STEVEN 650-588-9200 CA 444.43 1 444.43 0.00 0 444.43 0.42% 1 0.00

TRADE ENGINEERING
119156 MCC001 763 MISSION 510-796-7473 CA 444.92 1 444.92 0.00 0 444.92 0.42% 1 0.00

IRRIGATION SUP
47979 WHOLESALE 5099 MID-WEST 586-254-6500 MI 447.57 1 447.57 0.00 0 447.57 0.42% 1 0.00

TRADE INSTRUMENT
47979 WHOLESALE 5169 DOMYOWNPESTCO 866-581-7378 GA 471.00 2 235.50 0.00 0 471.00 0.44% 2 0.00

TRADE NTROL
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 TIFCO INDUSTRIES 8-668-3598308 TX 498.65 1 498.65 0.00 0 498.65 0.47% 1 32.81

TRADE INC
47979 WHOLESALE 5021 COMPLIANCE 866-793-6419 CA 506.51 1 506.51 0.00 0 506.51 0.48% 1 41.99

TRADE ASSISTAN

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     6
79 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX $ 528.96 1 $ 528.96 $ 0.00 0 $ 528.96 0.50% 1 $ 0.00
5262197767635

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 SOL*SNAP-ON 877-740-1900 GA 569.00 2 284.50 0.00 0 569.00 0.54% 2 51.73
TRADE INDUSTRIAL

47972 OTHER 5999 HOTSY PACIFIC 209-578-3925 CA 587.95 1 587.95 0.00 0 587.95 0.55% 1 53.45
217413 Prohibited Tran 8699 NACWA 202-5331804 DC 600.00 1 600.00 0.00 0 600.00 0.57% 1 0.00

47963 BUSINESS 8299 SKILLPATH 913-3623900 KS 607.00 3 202.33 0.00 0 607.00 0.57% 3 0.00
EXPENS NATIONAL

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES 800-435-9792 TX 607.96 1 607.96 0.00 0 607.96 0.57% 1 0.00
5262405407494

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 LINCOLN ELECTRIC 216-383-2202 OH 635.00 1 635.00 0.00 0 635.00 0.60% 1 0.00
TRADE WELD SC

137510 Rialto 9399 CALIFORNIA 916-442-7887 CA 640.00 8 80.00 0.00 0 640.00 0.60% 8 0.00
SPECIAL DISTR

47972 OTHER 5999 EVENT MAGIC INC 510-434-0406 CA 640.80 1 640.80 0.00 0 640.80 0.60% 1 0.00
47963 BUSINESS 8999 SQ *MCCORD ANTIOCH CA 695.00 1 695.00 0.00 0 695.00 0.65% 1 0.00

EXPENS PRODUCTION & D
150085 MCC5969 5969 B&H PHOTO, 800-2215743 NY 699.48 1 699.48 0.00 0 699.48 0.66% 1 0.00

800-606-6969
137510 Rialto 9399 UNION CITY CITY UNION CITY CA 706.00 1 706.00 0.00 0 706.00 0.66% 1 0.00

HALL
47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL HIGHER 800-274-7799 TX 729.36 2 364.68 0.00 0 729.36 0.69% 2 65.24

TRADE EDUC
47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 757.12 4 189.28 0.00 0 757.12 0.71% 4 68.89

SUPPLIES
47963 BUSINESS 8299 ROK*ROCKWELL 440-646-3434 WI 861.00 1 861.00 0.00 0 861.00 0.81% 1 0.00

EXPENS TRAINING
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 MCMASTER-CARR 630-834-9600 IL 874.89 1 874.89 0.00 0 874.89 0.82% 1 79.54

TRADE
47979 WHOLESALE 5211 CENTRAL 408-293-6272 CA 970.20 2 485.10 0.00 0 970.20 0.91% 2 0.00

TRADE CONCRETE SUPPLY
47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL 800-981-3355 TX 987.48 1 987.48 0.00 0 987.48 0.93% 1 81.35

TRADE K-12/GOVT
119156 MCC001 8220 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 1,000.00 1 1,000.00 0.00 0 1,000.00 0.94% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     7
80 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

119156 MCC001 *MITCHSCERT
47979 WHOLESALE 5046 WATSON - 978-658-6168 MA 1,026.30 1 1,026.30 0.00 0 1,026.30 0.97% 1 93.30

TRADE MARLOW BR
47979 WHOLESALE 5039 IN *WILLIAMS 248-6436400 MI 1,030.00 1 1,030.00 0.00 0 1,030.00 0.97% 1 0.00

TRADE PRODUCTS, IN
47963 BUSINESS 8398 CALIFORNIA 916-4460388 CA 1,100.00 2 550.00 0.00 0 1,100.00 1.04% 2 0.00

EXPENS ASSOC OF SAN
47979 WHOLESALE 5065 PROTOTEK 800-5419123 WA 1,205.00 1 1,205.00 0.00 0 1,205.00 1.13% 1 0.00

TRADE CORPORATION
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 PROTECTION PLEASANT GROV UT 1,210.00 1 1,210.00 0.00 0 1,210.00 1.14% 1 0.00

TRADE ENGINEERING
47972 OTHER 5732 BESTBUYCOM7856 888-237289 MN 1,214.99 1 1,214.99 0.00 0 1,214.99 1.14% 1 78.16

88014799
47970 OFFICE 7399 SWAGELOK 408-7343145 CA 1,224.98 1 1,224.98 0.00 0 1,224.98 1.15% 1 103.28

SERVICES NORTHERN
CALIFOR

47978 VEHICLE 5533 FREMONT FORD 888-244-9105 CA 1,329.64 1 1,329.64 0.00 0 1,329.64 1.25% 1 0.00
EXPENSE

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 DWYER 219-8798868 IN 1,388.90 2 694.45 0.00 0 1,388.90 1.31% 2 123.50
TRADE INSTRUMENTS INC

47965 HOTELS 3690 COURTYARD BY LIVERMORE CA 1,449.32 1 1,449.32 0.00 0 1,449.32 1.37% 1 0.00
MARRIOTT-

47979 WHOLESALE 5311 SEARS.COM 9300 800-349-4358 IA 1,469.14 5 293.83 0.00 0 1,469.14 1.38% 5 130.16
TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5231 HAYWARD COLOR HAYWARD CA 1,477.09 4 369.27 0.00 0 1,477.09 1.39% 4 0.00
TRADE INC

141822 Hardware Supply 5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 1,534.44 1 1,534.44 0.00 0 1,534.44 1.45% 1 138.35
635

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 PERRY 321-609-9036 OH 1,600.00 1 1,600.00 0.00 0 1,600.00 1.51% 1 0.00
TRADE FIBERGLASS PROD

47979 WHOLESALE 5039 OWEN EQUIPMENT 503-2559055 OR 1,658.23 3 552.74 0.00 0 1,658.23 1.56% 3 33.92
TRADE COMPANY

137510 Rialto 9399 UNION CITY CITY 510-675-5381 CA 1,765.00 3 588.33 0.00 0 1,765.00 1.66% 3 0.00
HALL

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     8
81 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

252142 MCC7392 7392 H AND H 510-2239344 CA $ 1,823.10 1 $ 1,823.10 $ 0.00 0 $ 1,823.10 1.72% 1 $ 163.00
ENGINEERING
SUPPL

137510 Rialto 9399 ALAMEDACOENVIR 877-4328871 CA 1,962.00 1 1,962.00 0.00 0 1,962.00 1.85% 1 0.00
ONHEALTH

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 THE LIGHTHOUSE HAYWARD CA 2,003.47 4 500.87 0.00 0 2,003.47 1.89% 4 0.00
TRADE

47972 OTHER 5941 NEBOTOOLS/ALLIA 972-343-1000 TX 2,065.00 1 2,065.00 0.00 0 2,065.00 1.94% 1 0.00
NCE SPORTS

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 HANNA RUBBER 816-888-7341 MO 2,339.41 2 1,169.71 0.00 0 2,339.41 2.20% 2 0.00
TRADE CO.

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 ULINE  *SHIP 800-295-5510 IL 2,379.31 1 2,379.31 0.00 0 2,379.31 2.24% 1 192.00
E SUPPLIES

284298 VTA Catering 5812 DICKEYS CA153 FREMONT CA 2,512.83 1 2,512.83 0.00 0 2,512.83 2.37% 1 0.00
47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 2,576.54 17 151.56 0.00 0 2,576.54 2.43% 17 54.09

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS
47979 WHOLESALE 5085 INNOVATIVE COIN 510-259-1499 CA 2,778.59 1 2,778.59 0.00 0 2,778.59 2.62% 1 236.69

TRADE LAUNDRIE
47970 OFFICE 2741 AMERICANPAY 210-226-4600 TX 3,250.72 7 464.39 0.00 0 3,250.72 3.06% 7 0.00

SERVICES
47979 WHOLESALE 5046 FLIR COMMERCIAL 603-324-7824 NH 3,990.00 2 1,995.00 0.00 0 3,990.00 3.76% 2 0.00

TRADE SYSTEM
217413 Prohibited Tran 5719 WWW.ANYPROMO. 909-591-5278 CA 5,919.13 1 5,919.13 0.00 0 5,919.13 5.57% 1 0.00

COM
137510 Rialto 9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA 7,986.00 6 1,331.00 0.00 0 7,986.00 7.52% 6 0.00

DEV SVCS

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page     9

82 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail

Merchant
Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of
Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CA WATER ENV 510-382-7800 CA $ 8,627.00 33 $ 261.42 $ 0.00 0 $ 8,627.00 8.13% 33 $ 0.00
EXPENS ASSN

Total $106,726.16 $ 549.40 $106,176.76 293 $ 2,207.70

Total Number of Records:         159

End of Report

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19  Page    10

83 of 101



State of California
Report Date: 07/08/2016

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail Output Parameter Page

Cycle Close Date Range: 04/2016 to 06/2016
Report Type: Detail

Merchant Profile Source: Association
Merchant Names: All

Merchant Category Code Group: All
Merchant States: All

Sort Report By: (1) Total Spend, (2) No Sort, (3) No Sort, (4) No Sort
Break/Subtotal Level: No Break/Subtotal

 Processing Hierarchy Position: Bank Agent Company Division Department

1425 3135 51756 All All

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 07/08/2016 09:28:19 / MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1467988097030_36110_06974658981948412  Page    11

84 of 101



DDirectors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
OOfficers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DDATE: July 18, 2016 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14 - Meeting of July 25, 2016 

Information Item:  SSolar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Update 

Recommendation 
 
This is an information item.  Staff will provide the Board with an operational update of the solar 
and cogeneration facilities at the District. 
 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Solar Carport 
 
The District completed construction of the solar carport facility located at the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant at a cost of $884,000 and began operation in September 2011.  The 
system consists of 637 solar panels and is rated at 125 kilowatt (kW).  The system rating is based 
on the California Energy Commission’s calculation that takes into account the number of panels, 
the rating of each panel, and the inverter efficiency. 
 
The District applied for the California Solar Initiative (CSI) incentive that would rebate $0.2568 per 
kilowatt-hour (kWh) of power generated by the system for a period of five years from September 
2011 through August 2016.  PG&E, the administrator of the CSI program, approved an estimated 
incentive amount of $252,850. 
 
Through June 30, 2016, the Solar Carport facility has generated a total of 1,193,835 kWh of power, 
which equates to $200,071 in energy savings at the Plant.  Additionally, the District has received 
$263,169 or approximately 104% of the estimated CSI incentive rebate from PG&E.  The total 

85 of 101



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of July 25, 2016 
Page 2 

benefit of the Solar Carport is $463,240, which represents 52.3% of simple payback for the initial 
construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 
  
Irvington Pump Station Solar Facility 
 
The District completed construction of the solar facility located at the Irvington Pump Station at a 
cost of $2.85 million and began operation in April 2012.  The system consists of 1,680 solar panels 
and is rated at 408 kW. 
 
The District applied for the CSI incentive that would rebate $0.15 per kWh of power generated by 
the system for a period of five years from June 2012 through May 2017.  PG&E approved an 
estimated incentive amount of $623,370. 
 
Through July 4, 2016, the solar facility has generated a total of 3,959,517 kWh of power, which 
equates to $1,235,380 in energy savings at the Irvington Pump Station.  Additionally, the District 
has received $557,288 or 89% of the estimated CSI incentive rebate from PG&E.  The total benefit 
of the solar facility is $1,792,668, which represents 62.9% of simple payback for the initial 
construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 
 
Cogeneration Facility 
 
The District completed construction of the Cogeneration Facility located at the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant at a construction cost of $11.8 million and the facility was fully 
operational in late November 2014.  The facility consists of two 850-kW biogas-fueled engine 
generators and a packaged biogas conditioning system. 
 
The District applied for the Self-Generation Incentive Program (SGIP) that provides financial 
incentives for the installation of new, qualifying self-generation equipment installed to meet all or 
a portion of the electric energy needs of a facility.  PG&E, the administrator of the SGIP in Northern 
California, approved the District’s application for a maximum rebate of $3.38 million.  The District 
received half of the total rebate from PG&E in 2015 upon successful operational testing of the 
facility.  The other half will be paid to the District annually over the next five years and will depend 
on the actual electric energy generated by the facility and the actual amount of engine and exhaust 
heat recovered and utilized to heat the biosolids in the primary digesters.  In June 2016, the District 
received a check in the amount of $338,540.54 after one year of operation. 
 
Through June 30, 2016, the facility has generated a total of 18,606,249 kWh of power, which 
equates to approximately $1,733,885 in energy savings at the plant.  Additionally, the District has 
received $2,028,541 or 60% of the SGIP incentive rebate from PG&E.  The total benefit of the 
cogeneration facility is $3,762,426, which represents 31.4% of simple payback for the initial 
construction and maintenance costs of the facility. 
 

86 of 101



Agenda Item No. 14 
Meeting of July 25, 2016 
Page 3 

USD labor and equipment costs have not been factored into the maintenance costs of these 
facilities.  The rationale is that no personnel or equipment has been acquired specifically for the 
maintenance and the work has been accommodated to date with existing resources. 
 
Staff will provide the Board with an operational update of the solar and cogeneration facilities on 
a semi-annual basis.  The attached Table 1 summarizes the operational data that was discussed in 
this update. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CB:ks 
 
 
Attachment: Table 1 – Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Data 

87 of 101



Union Sanitary District
Table 1 - Solar and Cogeneration Facilities Operational Data

Facility
System 
Rating1

(kW)

Energy 
Generated 

This 
Period2

(kWh)

Total 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 
(kWh)

Value of 
Energy 

Generated 
To Date 

($)

Rebates 
Received 
To Date

($)

Total 
Received 

or 
Generated 

($)

Construction 
Cost
($)

Maintenance 
Costs 

To Date4

($)

Total Costs
Incurred 
To Date

($)

Simple 
Payback 
To Date 

(%)

Simple 
Payback

Term
(Years)

Comments

Alvarado WWT P  S olar 
C arport

125 119,415 1,193,835 200,071 263,169 463,240 884,000 1,000 885,000 52.3% 15.3
S ys tem began operation in             

S eptember 2011.  Values  are current 
through J une 30, 2016.

Irvington P ump S tation 
S olar F acility

408 479,577 3,959,517 1,235,380 557,288 1,792,668 2,850,000 1,300 2,851,300 62.9% 8.0
S ys tem began operation in April 2012.  

Values  are current through 
J uly 4, 2016.

C ogeneration F acility3 1,700 4,770,352 18,606,249 1,733,885 2,028,541 3,762,426 11,800,000 169,198 11,969,198 31.4% 9.2
S ys tem began operation in late 

November 2014.  Values  are current 
through J une 30, 2016.

   1) S ys tem R ating for the s olar facilities  is  bas ed on the number of panels , the rating of each panel, and the inverter efficiency.
   2) P eriod is  from November/D ecember 2015 through J une 2016.
   3) T he cogeneration equipment cons is ts  of two 850-kW engine generators .
   4) Maintenance cos ts  do not include US D  labor or equipment cos ts .

88 of 101



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: July 18, 2016 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer 
 Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the General Manager / Board Secretary 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 15 – Meeting of July 25, 2016 

Board of Directors Internal Committee Assignments for Fiscal Year 2017 
 
Recommendation 
Although this is typically presented as an information only item, the option to review and discuss is at 
the discretion of the Board President. 
 
Background 
Directors provided their preferences for internal committee assignments following the July 11, 2016, 
Board of Directors meeting.  Pursuant to Policy 3070, Board Officers and Committee Membership, all 
Boardmembers were provided a list of previous committee membership (2006 – present), a copy of the 
Policy, and a list of internal committee interests as submitted by each Boardmember.  Per Board Policy 
3070, the President of the Board of Directors is responsible for assigning members and alternates for 
internal committees.  The assignments received from President Handley are as follows: 
 
Committee Board Member Alternate #1 Alternate #2 Alternate #3 
Audit Jennifer Toy 

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley Anjali Lathi Pat Kite 

Budget & Finance Anjali Lathi 
Tom Handley 

Jennifer Toy 
 

Manny Fernandez Pat Kite 

Engineering & 
Information 
Technology 

Jennifer Toy 
Pat Kite 

Manny Fernandez Tom Handley Anjali Lathi 

Legal/Community 
Affairs 

Anjali Lathi 
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite Jennifer Toy Manny Fernandez 

Legislative Pat Kite 
Manny Fernandez 

Anjali Lathi Tom Handley Jennifer Toy 

Personnel Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite Anjali Lathi Tom Handley 

 
Attachments: Policy 3070, Board Officers and Committee Membership 
  Internal Committee Assignments 2006 – Present 

89 of 101



Agenda Item No. 9
Meeting of July 11, 2016
Page 2

  Committee Preferences and FY17 Assignments   

90 of 101



Union Sanitary District
Policy and Procedure Manual

  

   
Effective: 
03/14/16 

Boardmember Policy Number 3070  

 Officers and Committee Membership Page 1 of 3 
 
Policy 
Selection of Board Officers will be held annually at the first regular meeting in the month of 
July of each year. Internal Board committee memberships shall be established no later than the 
second regularly scheduled meeting in July of each year, following the selection of the Board 
Officers.  External commissions/committees representatives shall be established no later than 
the first regularly scheduled meeting in May of each year. 
 
Purpose 
To provide a written record of the procedure approved by the Board for electing its Officers 
and establishing its committee memberships. 
 
Procedure 
 
Board Officers 
 
1. The Officers are President, Vice President, and Secretary and the term of office shall be 

for one year. 
 
2. The President shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors and be 

responsible for the following: 
 
 a. maintaining order and following the published agenda 
 b. ensuring Boardmembers are allowed to participate in discussions 
 c. allowing the public to speak on agenda items 
 d. facilitating dialog among the public, staff, and Boardmembers 
 e. appointment of members of the Board of Directors to Committee assignments 
 f. signing resolutions, ordinances, and construction contracts on behalf of the District 
 g. representing the Board of Directors on issues or at events as designated by the full 

Board 
 
 The Vice President shall fulfill the duties of the President when the President is absent or 

otherwise unavailable. 
 
 The Secretary shall ensure the recording of the minutes of the Board of Directors 

meetings and sign the adopted Minutes, shall sign all Resolutions and Ordinances passed 
by the District, and shall serve as Vice President when the Vice President is absent or 
otherwise unavailable. If the President and Vice President are both absent, and a quorum 
is present, the Secretary shall preside over the meetings of the Board of Directors as the 
Board President. 

91 of 101



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070
Page 2 of 3

  

 
3. At the first regularly scheduled Board meeting in July, or as soon thereafter as the item 

can be agendized at a regular Board meeting, the Board shall appoint its Board Officers. 
During election years, the newly elected Boardmembers shall be sworn in as the first item 
of business on the agenda followed immediately by the selection of the Board Officers.  
During non-election years, the selection of the Board Officers shall be considered after 
the last motion item on the agenda.  The Board shall elect the President, Vice-President 
and Secretary for one year terms.  The election or removal of the President, Vice-
President or Secretary shall require a majority vote of the Board.  The Board may choose 
to follow a rotation of officers. 

 
The Board officers in office at the beginning of the meeting shall retain their positions 
until the adjournment of the meeting and the newly selected Board Officers shall assume 
their duties immediately following this meeting. 

 
Internal Board Committee Memberships 
 
1. Internal committees are:  Budget and Finance; Construction; Legal/Community Affairs; 

Legislative; Personnel; and Audit Committee.  There is no fixed schedule for meetings set 
by this policy and appointments are made by the President, as set forth below.  
Notwithstanding the above, meetings are noticed and open to the public. 

 
2. Annually, following the election of Board officers, and at the same meeting as the 

election of the officers, Directors shall be provided a list of the internal committees along 
with an internal committee interest form. The internal committee interest form shall be 
completed in order of preference and provided to the General Manager, or designee, no 
later than 11 calendar days in advance of the next Board meeting. 

 
3. The President is delegated the authority to appoint Directors to the internal committees.  

The President shall make every effort to rotate committee assignments and ensure a 
similar number of committee assignments for each Board member.  Notice of internal 
committee membership appointments will be contained in an information item to the 
Board at the next regularly scheduled meeting following the selection of the Board 
Officers.  The determination of the Board President on committee assignments shall be 
considered final. 

 
4. Ad Hoc committees are called as needed by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. 
 
External Commissions / Committee Representatives (CCR) 
 
1. External commissions/committees include:  the EBDA Commission; the Joint Powers 

Authority for Geographic Information Systems; the Alameda County Water District 
Finance Authority (ACWDFA); and the Alameda County Chapter of the California Special 
Districts Association. 

92 of 101



Boardmember Officers and Committee Membership Policy Number 3070
Page 3 of 3

  

 
2. Membership on the EBDA Commission shall be a maximum of two consecutive years, 

with a possible three years in exceptional circumstances if approved by the Board. 
 
3. The Board of Directors will elect the representatives for the External Committees no later 

than the first regularly scheduled Board meeting in May of each year in order to ensure 
that the representatives may be seated for the first meeting of the new committee or 
commission.  At the prior meeting, Directors shall be provided a list of the external 
committees along with an external committee interest form. The external committee 
interest form shall be completed in order of preference and provided to the General 
Manager, or designee, no later than 11 calendar days in advance of the meeting. The 
committee interests shall be compiled in a staff report by the General Manager, or 
designee, and provided to the Board for consideration.  The Board shall elect the CCRs for 
one year terms or as otherwise decided by the Board majority.  The election or removal 
of CCRs shall require a majority vote of the Board. 

 
Management Responsibility 
The General Manager will be responsible for scheduling on the Board agenda, the election or 
appointment of Board officers and external commissions, pursuant to the schedule shown 
above.  The General Manager, or designee, will provide the following to the new President, 
with copies to the Board:  (1) a list of the last ten years and current committee memberships; 
(2) a copy of this policy; and (3) a list of internal committee interests.  In consultation with the 
Board President, the General Manager will also be responsible for scheduling on the Board 
agenda the announcement of committee appointments. 
 
 
 
Supersedes Policy Dated:  July 2004, September 2005, January 2008, September 2010, October 
2013 
 
Approved by:  Board of Directors  March 14, 2016 
Reviewers:  General Manager, Board of Directors, District’s attorney 
Notify Person:  General Manager 
Review frequency: Every 3 years 
Next Review:  March 2019 
 

93 of 101



Union Sanitary District 

BOARDMEMBER INTERNAL COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 
2006 - Present 

Date Budget & 
Finance

Engineering & 
Information 
Technology 
(formerly 
Construction)

Legal/Community 
Affairs 

Legislative  Personnel Audit 
Committee 

7/15-7/16 Manny Fernandez 
Pat Kite

Tom Handley 
Jennifer Toy

Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley

Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy 

Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy

7/14-7/15 Anjali Lathi  
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Jennifer Toy

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy

Manny Fernandez  
Anjali Lathi

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley

7/13-7/14 Jennifer Toy  
Pat Kite 

Tom Handley 
Manny Fernandez 

Anjali Lathi 
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 
Manny
Fernandez 

Jennifer Toy 
Tom Handley 

7/12-7/13 Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley

Anjali Lathi 
Pat Kite 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Jennifer Toy 
Manny Fernandez

Jennifer Toy 
Tom Handley 

7/11-7/12 Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 

Anjali Lathi 
Pat Kite 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Jennifer Toy 
Manny Fernandez 

Jennifer Toy 
Tom Handley 

7/10-7/11 Tom Handley 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Gacoscos* 
Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Gacoscos* 
Manny Fernandez 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Gacoscos* 
Jennifer Toy 

7/09-7/10 Pat Gacoscos 
Anjali Lathi 

Tom Handley 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Gacoscos 
Jennifer Toy 

Pat Kite 
Jennifer Toy 

7/08-7/09 Jennifer Toy 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Pat Gacoscos 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Kite 
Tom Handley 

Pat Gacoscos 
Jennifer Toy 

7/07-7/08 Jennifer Toy 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Kite 
Jennifer Toy 

Tom Handley 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Kite 
Pat Gacoscos 

Pat Gacoscos 
Tom Handley 

7/06-7/07 Jennifer Toy 
Anjali Lathi 

Pat Kite 
Dan Wilkowsky 

Anjali Lathi 
Pat Gacoscos 

Pat Kite 
Pat Gacoscos 

Jennifer Toy 
Dan Wilkowsky 

       
*Pat Gacoscos resigned from her position, and Manny Fernandez was appointed as her replacement during FY11 

94 of 101



Board
Member

Budget &
Finance

Engineering &
IT

Legal &
Community

Affairs Legislative Personnel Audit
Anjali 2 3 1 5 4 6
Jennifer 2 1 5 6 3 4
Manny 3 1 5 4 2 6
Pat 4 1 5 2 3 6
Tom 2 1 3 4 5 6

Board
Member

Budget &
Finance

Engineering &
IT

Legal &
Community

Affairs Legislative Personnel Audit
Member Anjali (2) Jennifer (1) Anjali (1) Pat (2) Manny (2) Jennifer (4)
Member Tom (2) Pat (1) Tom (3) Manny (4) Jennifer (3) Manny (6)
Alternate #1 Jennifer Manny Pat Anjali Pat Tom
Alternate #2 Manny Tom Jennifer Tom Anjali Anjali
Alternate #3 Pat Anjali Manny Jennifer Tom Pat

Preferences

Committee Assignments

95 of 101



https://www.edhat.com/site/tidbit.cfm?nid=171352&showcomments=T 

Safe Drug Collection Program Ordinance
updated: Jun 22, 2016, 9:01 AM 

Source: Santa Barbara County Public Health Department  

On June 21, 2016, the Board of Supervisors became the first County in Southern 
California to pass an Extended Producer Responsibility ("EPR") ordinance which will 
provide a new program for residents to safely dispose of their unused household 
medications at pharmacies in Santa Barbara County.

The average American uses a dozen prescriptions per year, many of which go unused. Yet 
there are limited options for residents to safely dispose of unused medications. The 
accumulation of medication increases the opportunity for misuse, abuse and diversion. 
Further, improper disposal of medications pollutes our environment, including our water 
supply.

Third District Supervisor Doreen Farr, who has led local efforts to establish the program, 
stated, "This new program is critically important to protect the public health and safety 
of Santa Barbara County residents and our environment. This drug collection program 
will help reduce toxic pollutants in our water supply and decrease the availability of 
addictive drugs in our homes and community." Over the last year, a diverse group of local 
stakeholders County-wide have participated in community meetings to craft a convenient 
and sustainable collection program, including children and senior service providers, law 
enforcement agencies, environmental groups, pharmacists, water and waste management 
districts. All consistently indicated the urgent need for more convenient drug disposal 
options.

Drug manufacturers who conduct business in SBC will now be required to finance and 
operate the drug collection program. Over half a dozen other Counties in Northern 
California, as well as other jurisdictions nationally and globally, have also implemented 
producer responsibility ordinances. California has passed product stewardship laws for a 
variety of other products, including mattresses, mercury, thermostats, carpet and paint.

The new program will augment the current collection bins operated by the Sheriff's office, 
also known as "Operation Medicine Cabinet."

The development of the ordinance was a collaboration between a number of Santa 
Barbara County departments including Public Health, Sheriff's Office, Public Works and 
County Counsel. Based on the timelines within the new ordinance, new disposal options 
are expected to be available in approximately fifteen months from the date of passage.

96 of 101



Big drops in urban water use, state finds
By Kurtis Alexander

Updated 5:18 pm, Wednesday, July 6, 2016 

Californians are saving an extraordinary amount of water, new records show, even after 
winter rains prompted state regulators to begin easing drought-driven restrictions on 
cities and towns.

The State Water Resources Control Board reported Wednesday that urban water use 
dropped 28.2 percent in May compared with the same period in 2013 — the second-
biggest monthly reduction since the state’s water rationing program began last year. 
May’s savings followed an impressive 26.1 percent reduction in April.

With state regulators relaxing water rules, however, some are doubting whether such 
high levels of savings will continue — and whether they even need to. Already, many 
water agencies have passed the state’s new “stress test” and are no longer required to 
save water under a policy being praised by suppliers and criticized by conservationists.

“We’re not out of a drought yet,” said Sejal Choksi-Chugh, executive director of the 
conservation advocacy San Francisco Baykeeper. “Once the mandatory rules are lifted, 
there’s not as much incentive to conserve. I don’t see this much of a conservation rate 
staying in place.”

The state water board loosened its conservation policy this spring in response to 
complaints from local water providers who said near-normal rain and snow last winter 
gave a sufficient boost to supplies. The agencies said top-down regulation was no longer 
needed.

Agencies set targets

State regulators in June began allowing the local agencies to set their own conservation 
targets as long as they have enough water on hand to weather three more years of 
drought.

Nine of the state’s 10 largest water suppliers, including the San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission and East Bay Municipal Utility District, said they met the state’s supply 
requirement and consequently do not have to commit to any savings.

The policy is a far cry from the one initiated a year ago that set specific cuts of up to 36 
percent for suppliers.

The change has prompted many local water agencies to ease conservation rules for 
homes and businesses, from allowing outdoor watering more days of the week to 
eliminating caps on total water use.

97 of 101



2 Danville fountains

This month, East Bay water officials allowed Danville officials to turn on two park 
fountains popular with children. The play features at Hap Magee Ranch and Sycamore 
Valley Parks had been closed because they didn’t recirculate the water, which officials 
previously had deemed wasteful.

“Our water supply is in good shape,” said Andrea Pook, spokeswoman for EBMUD, 
noting that El Niño-fueled storms filled the agency’s reservoirs to average levels for the 
first time in years.

The district also recently stopped requiring households to use less than 1,000 gallons of 
water a day, a limit that yielded thousands of violations and many hefty fines.

Even without such rules in place, Pook expects customers to continue saving water at 
close to the 24 percent level of conservation averaged over the past year.

Turf lawns and toilets

The East Bay water agency, like many other suppliers, has encouraged customers to 
make physical changes to their homes, such as installing turf lawns and water-efficient 
toilets, that will result in a lifetime of conservation.

Some suppliers have put money into new sources of water, like desalination plants.

“When we looked overall at how the state was doing in getting through the drought, the 
urban and suburban sector was by far doing the best and was really the most drought-
resilient,” said Ellen Hanak, director of the Water Policy Center at the Public Policy 
Institute of California. “A lot of local agencies have made a lot of investment in storage 
and supply diversification.”

Substantial reductions

Through May, urban water providers had cut back 24.5 percent during the past 12 
months, according to the new state numbers. May’s conservation rate was second to 
only July 2015, when suppliers saved 31.4 percent.

As good as the numbers have been, many say the state should not ease up on the local 
agencies, noting that their savings can be a boon for wildlife that enjoy healthier rivers 
and farmers who want fuller reservoirs.

“It’s a finite resource,” said Choksi-Chugh, “and to decide that your region should use 
more use is just not appropriate.”

Kurtis Alexander is a San Francisco Chronicle staff writer. 
Email: kalexander@sfchronicle.com Twitter: @kurtisalexander
 

98 of 101



Moraga  
Sinkhole repair funds on the way 
Town appealed feds’ rejection; as much as $545,000 coming

By Sam Richards July 8, 2016

srichards @bayareanewsgroup.com

MORAGA — Federal help to pay for repairing the massive sinkhole at Rheem
Boulevard and Center Street is finally on its way, with the Federal Highway 
Administration agreeing to send up to $545,000 in reimbursement for initial 
emergency work after the sinkhole formed March 13.

Town officials made the announcement Wednesday, having heard from Caltrans on 
Friday that it had won an appeal of the highway administration’s rejection in May of 
that funding request. The initial request was rejected because the accompanying 
documentation was deemed inadequate.

Accepting that maximum $545,000 reimbursement makes the town eligible to receive 
further financial assistance from the highway administration for permanent repairs, 
town Public Works Director Edric Kwan said in a statement on the town’s website. 

Moraga could receive as much as $2.6 million from the federal agency — about 88 
percent of the total estimated $2.95 million cost of full, permanent repairs. The town 
already has applied for those funds, said Laurie Sucgang, a town senior civil 
engineer, on Thursday. 

State Sen. Steve Glazer, D-Orinda, said his office told Moraga officials he would help 
however possible. He and Assemblywoman Catharine Baker, R-San Ramon, met in 
June with Caltrans Director Malcolm Dougherty to make the case for Moraga’s need, 
noting the town budget’s “fragile situation.” The full cost of repairs would equal about 
one-quarter of the town’s entire $12 million 2016-17 budget. 

Acting Town Manager Bob Priebe said having to come up with a significant share of 
the full repair cost would be devastating for the town. “Without the ability to replenish 
that, it would be a huge blow for us,” Priebe said. “I’m hopeful that we’re on a very 
good path now,” Glazer said Thursday.

Receiving the initial maximum of $545,000 will require Moraga to follow highway 
administration guidelines in pursuing any or all of that additional $2.6 million, Priebe 
said, which could add time to the process. 

The hope is that the work will be finished by mid-October. But plans are being made 
for channeling rainwater around the sinkhole site if the work is not done by then, 
Priebe said. 

There’s no work going on right now at the sinkhole site, Sucgang said.  

Contact Sam Richards at 925-943-8241. Follow him at Twitter.com/ samrichardsWC.

99 of 101



 

100 of 101



Central Contra Costa water 
treatment plant to host open house
By Sam Richards, srichards@bayareanewsgroup.com
POSTED:   07/14/2016 03:56:15 PM PDT | UPDATED:   73 MIN. AGO

July 15, 2016

PACHECO -- The Central Contra Costa Sanitary District will hold an open house on 
Saturday from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. at its headquarters at 5019 Imhoff Place, on the northeast 
side of the Interstate 680-Highway 4 interchange.

The free, family-friendly event commemorates 70 years of Central San operations and 
service. It's the agency's first open house.

It will offer a variety of fun activities (including toilet races), giveaways, free food, 
educational exhibits, big truck displays, tours of the wastewater treatment plant, live music 
by Channel 7 news anchor Dan Ashley's band, PUSH) and more.

Central San provides wastewater services for more than 476,000 people in central Contra 
Costa County, and operates both a recycled water fill station and a household hazardous 
waste collection facility. 

101 of 101



MISSION STATEMENT 
April 25, 2006 
 

 
 
To safely and responsibly collect and treat wastewater for the Tri-cities 
while protecting human health and improving the environment in a way 

that benefits our customers, employees and the community. 
 
 
How we accomplish our Mission: 
 
We demonstrate our commitment to safety by: 

• Having an effective safety program 
• Protecting employees and the community 
• Committing resources (equipment, training, staff) 
• Planning to work safely 
• Looking out for each other while we work 

 
We demonstrate responsibility by: 

• Being fiscally responsible 
• Being accountable for our actions and decisions 
• Anticipating and meeting future needs and demonstrating stewardship 
• Maintaining compliance with laws and regulations 
• Effectively managing our assets 
• Continuously improving our processes 

 
We collect and treat wastewater, including: 

• Maintaining our infrastructure 
• Providing capacity in the collection system and plant 
• Regulating connections  
• Disposing of treated wastewater and biosolids 
• Effectively using technology 
• Having effective pretreatment and pollution prevention programs 
• Testing for compliance 

 
We protect human health by: 

• Preventing sewer spills and back-ups 
• Reducing health risks through treatment of wastewater 
• Responding to emergencies 

 
We improve the environment by: 

• Enhancing the San Francisco Bay and Hayward Marsh ecosystems 
• Maintaining compliance with effluent and air quality regulations 
• Promoting pollution prevention 
• Recycling biosolids 
• Co-generating electric power  

 

Desk Item 
Item 9 

7/25/2016



MISSION STATEMENT 
April 25, 2006 
 

 
 

 
We benefit our customers by: 

• Providing reliable service 
• Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value 
• Promptly responding to customers’ needs 
• Being professional and courteous 
• Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs 
• Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing 

capacity 
 
 
We benefit our employees by: 

• Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment 
• Providing a safe work environment 
• Demonstrating equality and fairness 
• Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and 

creativity 
• Recognizing employee contributions 
• Providing training and resources 
• Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly 
• Encouraging cooperation and collaboration  

 
 
We benefit the community by: 

• Protecting the environment and controlling odors 
• Communicating with the public and educating them on wastewater issues 
• Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid 
• Participating in community outreach activities and charity events 
• Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in 

professional associations, partnering with other agencies and 
organizations, and sharing best practices 

• Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies  
 
 

Desk Item 
Item 9 

7/25/2016



VISION/MISSION STATEMENT 
July, 2016 revision DRAFT 

 
 

 
To safely and responsibly collect, treat and recover wastewater and 
process by-products generated by our customers, while protecting 

human health and improving the environment in a way that benefits the 
Tri-Cities and all USD stakeholders. 

 
 
How we accomplish our Mission: 
 
We demonstrate our commitment to safety by: 

• Having an effective safety program 
• Constantly reviewing our safety program for improvement opportunities 
• Protecting employees and the community 
• Focusing on protecting employees and the community in all our activities 
• Allocating resources to ensure safe operations (equipment, training, staff) 
• Planning to work safely 
• Collaboratively promoting a safe work environment 

 
We demonstrate responsibility by: 

• Being accountable for our actions and decisions 
• Being fiscally responsible 
• Anticipating and meeting future needs and demonstrating stewardship 
• Maintaining compliance with laws and regulations 
• Effectively managing our assets 
• Continuously improving our processes 
• Looking for innovative ways to reduce or reuse our waste streams 

 
We collect, treat and recover/reuse wastewater, which includes: 

• Maintaining our infrastructure 
• Providing capacity in the collection system and plant 
• Regulating connections  
• Increasing our efforts for resource recovery (biogas, biosolids, etc.) 
• Effectively using technology 
• Having effective pretreatment and pollution prevention programs 
• Testing for compliance 
• Exploring ways to maximize water reclamation and reuse potential 
• Working towards energy neutrality 

 
We protect human health by: 

• Preventing sewer spills and back-ups 
• Reducing health risks through treatment of wastewater 
• Treating wastewater to meet all State and Federal standards 
• Responding to emergencies 

 

Commented [LB2]: Teams want consistency in the vision 
and mission statements; suggested repurpose here as well.  
No one likes reuse 

Commented [LB1]: Alternate suggestion was “… recover 
resources generated by our customers..” 

Commented [LB3]: Board originally referenced “when 
possible” here, but later rescinded that position 

Commented [LB4]: Board members thought it was 
important to retain mention of our original customers- the Tri 
Cities 

Commented [LB5]: Several teams felt the terms 
stakeholder and groups were unnecessarily redundant. 

Commented [LB6]: Board was concerned that the term 
“stakeholder” might seem too vague to the public 

Commented [LB7]: Some teams wanted to add necessary 
or some other indicator of the level of commitment to 
resource allocation; more just removed the word adequate 

Commented [LB8]: Some suggested “proven” since we 
are not typically early adopters 

Commented [LB9]: Some teams suggested repurpose as a 
better term 

Commented [LB10]: Added per Board input 

Commented [LB11]: Added per Board input 

Commented [LB12]: A few teams suggested moving this 
under “Environment” 

Desk Item 
Item 9 

7/25/2016



VISION/MISSION STATEMENT 
July, 2016 revision DRAFT 

 
 
 

 
We improve and enhance the environment by: 

• Improving water quality in the San Francisco Bay estuary  
• Maintaining compliance with effluent and air quality regulations 
• Promoting pollution prevention through outreach and educational 

programs 
• Utilizing solar installations whenever feasible; maximizing our use of green 

energy sources 
 

 
We benefit our stakeholders by: 
 
 

• Complying with all local, state, and federal regulations, protecting the 
environment and controlling odors 

• Communicating with the public and bringing awareness about wastewater 
issues 

• Responding to emergencies and providing mutual aid 
• Participating in community outreach activities  
• Contributing to the wastewater treatment profession by participating in 

professional associations, partnering with other agencies and 
organizations, and sharing best practices 

• Working cooperatively with cities and other government agencies 
  

• Providing award-winning, reliable service 
• Being fiscally responsible and cost effective, and providing value 
• Promptly responding to customers’ needs 
• Being professional and courteous 
• Proactively and creatively meeting customer needs 
• Supporting businesses through permitting, education and by providing 

capacity 
 

 
• Providing a safe work environment 
• Recognizing employee contributions 
• Encouraging cooperation and collaboration  
• Demonstrating equality and fairness 
• Valuing employee input, and offering opportunities for involvement and 

creativity 
• Providing training and resources 
• Providing competitive wages and benefits in a stable work environment 
• Communicating and sharing information openly and honestly 

 
  

C
us

to
m

er
  

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

Commented [LB13]: “Enhance” added per Board 

Commented [LB14]: Teams believe that the Bay is the 
estuary 

Commented [LB15]: Most teams think the term 
stakeholder covers and that group is not needed 

Commented [LB16]: Order of stakeholder groups moved 
per Board 

Commented [LB17]: This bullet added as top in 
Community per Board 

Formatted: Font color: Custom Color(RGB(68,114,196))

Commented [LB18]: Changed to “bringing awareness” 
versus educating per Board/GM 

Commented [LB19]: Some suggest Excellent here instead 
of award winning, feeling that we are “on the hook” to keep 
winning awards otherwise 

Desk Item 
Item 9 

7/25/2016



Notes Provided by Vice President Kite after Committee Meeting of Friday, July 22, 2016 
 
 

 
 

MISSION ACCOMPLISHMENT 
  
  
OUR SAFETY COMMITMENT IS DEMONSTRATED BY: 
 On going team safety training  
 A quality work environment 
 Equipment monitoring 
 Staff and public education  
  
  
  
RESPONSIBILITY IS DEMONSTRATED BY: 
 Fiscal auditing 
 Award-winning asset management 
 Legal and regulatory compliance 
 Newsletter public information 
  
  
  
WASTEWATER TREATMENT INCLUDES 
 Technology updates 
 Infrastructure maintenance and improvements 
 Resource recovery monitoring  
 Laboratory constant review 
  
  
  
HUMAN HEALTH PROTECTION 
 Sewer spill prevention 
 Back-up prevention 
 Constant wastewater analysis  
 Emergency response efficiency 
 

Desk Item 
Item 9 

7/25/2016


	07252016 Board Packet
	Desk Item for Item 9 - Mission Statement Proposed Edits
	Mission Statement 2006
	Feedbackv2
	Notes Provided by Vice President Kite after Committee Meeting of Friday - USD Mission and Vision July 2016




